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Financial Summary

Al RS0 =2

HZE12A31ALFE
For the Year Ended December 31

20184 20174 20164 20154

ARETRT ARETRT AR®ETT ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue PN 263,820 241,659 120,897 95,088

Gross profit E7 89,905 83,552 43,157 34,669

Gross profit margin FEH = 34.1% 34.6% 35.7% 36.5%

Profit before tax BRA AT E A 32,856 43,820 29,228 24,214

Profit attributable to equity N AR AR R R = A
shareholders of the Company 28,016 35,055 24,981 20,730
Listing expenses X 12,447 9,937 — —
M12A31H
As at December 31

20184 20174 20164 20154

ARETRT ARETRT AR®ETT ARBTT

Total assets BERRE 338,993 311,920 306,788 249,359

Total liabilities BEEE 223,546 275,336 134,016 101,568

Total equity iR 115,447 36,584 172,772 147,791
Notes: Bi5E

(1) The summary of the consolidated results and financial position
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015, 2016 and
2017 are extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 31

December 2018 (the “Prospectus”).

(2)  No financial information of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 has been published.

(1)

REBEZE2015% - 20164 R20174 128310 1
FEMNGAEERMBIRARE A A AR
HHEA2018F 12 A1 BB ER([RRER]) -

NEEYWETHEE2014F12 A31 B I FEIHB

ah -
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Chairman’s Statement

FEHRSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors of China
Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the“Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to propose the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the “Year”).

The government of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”
or “China”) promulgated the Opinions on Further Improving
Work on the Control of lllegal Modification and Overloading
of Trucks (BN E —HUIF E B IFENEMBREBESHGIET
EE9E R) on 12 July 2016 to require that the whole process
supervision on production, refitting and sale of trucks and road
transportation of cargo.

The customers of heavy truck manufacturers generally need
to replace their heavy trucks or purchase more heavy trucks
to comply with the regulation in order to fulfil the strong
transportation demand which increased the demand of
automotive decorative products from truck manufacturers.

Affected by this policy, our revenue from sales of heavy trucks
decorative components and parts continues to grow.

The significant increase in revenue from the sales of passenger
vehicle decorative components and parts was mainly due
to the increase in our supply of decorative products to a
passenger vehicles’ manufacturer in response to a tender we
successfully won for exterior decorative products in December
2017.

The Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB263.8
million in 2018, which represents a year-on-year increase
of 9.2% (2017: RMB241.7 million). The profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company recorded a year-on-year
decrease of 20.1% to approximately RMB28.0 million (2017:
approximately RMB35.1 million). The Company proposed the
payment of 2018 Final Dividend to shareholders of HK$0.6
cents per ordinary Share.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

HEHMHFUER
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The Company successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
on 15 January 2019. The successful listing was also a critical
milestone in the development of the Company. It represented
the recognition of the Company’s business in the capital market
and the market was optimistic about the future development of
the Company.

Looking forward to the future, due to the development
campaign of western regions (Fa&B A% ) adopted in this area
which would spur the development of infrastructure, such as
transportation, energy, telecommunications, etc.; and Shaanxi
Government will raise a special industrial fund of RMB4.0 billion
to expedite the automotive industry, the Group will borrow
this opportunity and continue to strengthen new product
development with existing customers, actively expand new
passenger vehicle customers, continuously expand product
mix and enhance core competitiveness.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to our honorable shareholders. The Group will
continue to grasp opportunities from industry development and
create greater value through constant business development
and enhancement of business operation management to
reward the support of the shareholders.

Hou Jianli
Chairman

26 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR R if

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Automotive ownership in the PRC increased rapidly amid
China’s rapid economic growth, continuing urbanization and
increasing levels of household consumption. The growth of
the heavy trucks and passenger vehicles’ interior decorative
product markets in the PRC are mainly driven by the following
growth drivers:

(i) Increase in popularity of passenger vehicles and wide
application of heavy trucks
With the increase in popularity of passenger vehicles
and wide application of heavy trucks in infrastructure
construction and logistics industry, automotive ownership
in the PRC increased rapidly in the past five years and it
is also expected to increase in the next five years. Further,
heavy truck ownership is expected to grow due to the
stimulation of government policies such as “One Belt,
One Road” and “Yangtze River Economic Zone” policies.

(ii) Increase in demand from logistics industry and coal
industry
The growth of the logistics industry and the coal industry
is expected to increase the demand for heavy trucks.
With the rapid development of logistics industry driven
by the growth of e-commerce market and the increase of
consumers’ purchasing power, the use of heavy trucks
to transport the goods in bulk size is rapidly increasing.
Further, the rising price of coal has boosted the
production volume of coal in recent years and increased
the needs for transportation for coal across the whole
country, which leads to higher demand for heavy trucks.

(iii) Higher requirements for comfort

Consumers, who are no longer satisfied with basic
functions of heavy trucks, are becoming increasingly
more demanding when it comes to the comfort level of the
driver’s cabin. With the advancement in manufacturing
technology, heavy truck manufacturers and interior
decorative product manufacturers are committed in
developing new heavy truck models with larger inner
space or advanced materials to improve the comfort
level of passengers when driving and riding. Such higher
requirements for driving comfort are likely to improve the
heavy trucks’ interior decorative product market.

8 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD AR EI KI5 EREFAR A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI Rk i

(iv) Regulatory control and policy support

The PRC Government has implemented a number of
regulations and policies, which controls illegal over-
sized and over-loaded heavy trucks transportation more
stringently. Such control will reduce the loading capacity
of heavy trucks and increase the overall demand for
heavy trucks. In addition, the PRC Government has
implemented policies in relation to strict emission control
of heavy trucks and the renewal of heavy trucks. With
regulatory control and policy support from governments,
the heavy truck market and heavy truck interior decorative
product market are estimated to record a continuous
development in the PRC.

The Board expect that automotive interior products
market in the PRC is expected to maintain growth as
China’s automotive ownership continues to grow.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are the largest heavy trucks’ interior decorative components
and parts manufacturer in North West China with a market-
leading position. Our products primarily comprise a wide
array of automotive interior decorative components and parts
and to a lesser extent exterior decorative components and
parts, which are designed to be installed on heavy trucks
or passenger vehicles. We offer design and development
solutions tailored to meet our customers’ specific requirements
of automotive interior decorative products including functional
specifications and appearance.

The aggregate GFA of the premises of our corporate
headquarters and production facility was approximately 30,684
sg.m. which were situated on a plot of land with a site area
of approximately 53,340 sg.m. located at Xi’an in Shaanxi
Province, the PRC. We possessed a total of 35 injection-
moulding production lines and 14 compression-moulding
production lines at this site. Our production capabilities
enable us to offer a wide range of products to our customers
including floor mats, instrument panels, headliners, overhead
compartments, door trim panels and other products such as
heat insulation mats, bumper cores, grilles and fenders.

(iv) EEEHIRBERXE

BB C B % BAMR MR AE MBS
Wi HEEBR LBRERY REES ° It
EEEEIREL REREHE - WiIRRE
BREHBETL - 1o PEBRFE R
ZHBRBEITEIN REMEBYIES LE
MELNRE - BRERTHEEES RBRX
¥ PEEBERREMSALEL RENME
SRR R o

SRS - EEDEATRABNSEE
E - pEAEABHER BB bR
5 -

EHOE

B BERAATEALRANEN RERNHTH
HELER - (EIEMISRLIML - RFINERTER
REMNRESARABELEANS R TERNHTH
- RRBIEIMET B - RPRREPHTER
B MM T BE AR OB F AL BSIRHE HilAy &
FHMBAEBRRTTESR ©

BMARRBREERBSHNBEEERNA
30,684 753K + (I EBRIEEE e mm — &L
HEFE#)53,340F 5 KA BR o PR sz E i £k
BIEFBERAEEGRIMEEBEEELR - BIM
MEERENTERMAZFPREEZNESR - 21
HARE  EERIR - TBEE - ©284% - BEFIRIR R EAb
S (AnFR A « RIS « TR AR -
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Management Discussion and

SRR R if

We generated revenue mainly from the manufacture and sales

of interior and exterior decorative components and parts

to truck and passenger vehicle manufacturers in the PRC.

Set forth below is the breakdown of our revenue by product
category for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017:

Analysis

BAERERBENINBEMHT LR T EH R

BRIEABEREEEEMEERA - TREHIR
2018 £ X% 2017 12 A 31 HILFEIRERER|

g0 2 A

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31HLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARET T % ARETIT %
Heavy trucks’ decorative ERREEMHTEF
components and parts 238,896 90.6 230,061 95.2
Passenger vehicles’ decorative ~ SEFAEE ST P14+
components and parts 24,924 9.4 11,598 4.8
Total 45T 263,820 100.0 241,659 100.0

Revenue from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative
components and parts increased from approximately RMB230.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB238.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing an increase of approximately 3.8%, mainly
resulting from the continuous demand for our products primarily
driven by the market demand on heavy trucks.

The demand from our customers was mainly driven by the
demand of heavy trucks in the market, which was principally
attributable to the combined effect of 1) the optimistic
market expectation anticipated from the extraordinarily good
performance of the heavy truck industry since 2017 which
stimulated the production and sales of heavy trucks; 2) the
continuing impact of the “Opinions on Further Improving Work
on the Control of lllegal Modification and Overloading of Trucks”
on the heavy truck industry which supported the demand of
heavy trucks in the logistics industry; and 3) the increasing
construction activities relating to infrastructure which required
heavy trucks for materials transportation.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

HERFHEMEBHHEELEZIRA

HESA RERMHTHMFEENRAREZE2017
F12A31HLFEMHARE2015ETRES
F2018F12A31BIEFEMHARE238.9EH
TCc HIRX A3.8%  FEAREMRENTESE
BT ME RIS ER AT

BAMEPHNEREIEXMS LB REF KA
wE O UWMETBERHNATEENGATERN
1) 2017 FER REEXEIMERRBRIAT
ERNRENEEMEE : 2) (BERE-—FHEE
BIRAMCR AR BEGIE TIENER) I HER R
BEENFEXE  WXIFMRTENELRER
K RI) BFEREN REFEHMANERRIEHR
EEEEBNIE N -



Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI Rk i

Revenue from sales of passenger vehicles’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of passenger vehicles’
decorative components and parts increased from
approximately RMB11.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately RMB24.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase
of approximately 114.9%. Such increase was mainly due to
the increase in our supply of passenger vehicles’ decorative
products to a passenger vehicles’ manufacturer in response to
a tender we successfully won for exterior decorative products.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue increased from approximately RMB241.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB263.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an
increase of approximately 9.2%. The increase was primarily due
to growth in sales of our heavy trucks’ decorative components
and parts and passenger vehicles’ decorative components and
parts.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our overall gross profit increased from approximately RMB83.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB89.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing an increase of approximately 7.6%. Such increase
was generally in line with the increase in revenue for the same
period. Our overall gross profit margin remained relatively
stable at approximately 34.1% for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: 34.6%).

Other (loss)/income

Our other income decreased from an income of approximately
RMB1.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
a loss of approximately RMBO0.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such decrease was primarily due to
the increase in foreign exchange losses from consideration
payable for the acquisition of equity interest in Xian Tianrui in
the process of our Group’s Reorganisation in 2018.

BRAEXMHTHHHEELEZWA

HERABERMTHHEENBABR2017EHL
ARME11.6BETTIEINE2018F N AREE24.9
BET  BIENAE114.9% « ZEMEZBREHNEK
IR N RSN EE R IBIE M M — R A B RIER
e A S FA B S B EE SR AN o

Bt 7 B

A

WAREZ2017F12A31B IEEENHARE
241 7TAB T EHE2018F12A31B IEFERND
AREE263.8FHE T IR EI.2% « ZIBMNES
EHARKMNER REEMT B LRAEEMNT
EFHERE -

EFRENR

EMREZE2017F12A31B L FENHARYE
83.6EE LI EH E2018E12A31HILEEWHL
ARMBI.OHE T » HIEKABT.6% ° ZIEIEF
HAR U A AN — B - B = 2018F 12831 H ILF
B BPNEBEEFNRREELEET - HA8341%
(20174 : 34.6%) °

Het(&518), WA
HW AR EE2017F12A31BIEFEHHAR
1 2B BTR 2 E20185F12A31AILFER
BERAOARBOEE T  TEHNAEER2018
FEABRETRBAR R nIEN RN EELIN
PEEJES 1R INFRTER -
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Management Discussion and

SRR R if

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses increased from approximately RMB4.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB7.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing an increase of approximately 51.9%. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase in employee benefit
costs as well as other expenses in response to our business
growth, including certain miscellaneous expenses incurred
in relation to unloading of our new products at our customers’
production facilities.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased from approximately
RMB31.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
approximately RMB41.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing an increase of approximately 32.9%. Such
increase was primarily due to the overall increase of our
business scale. In particular, we have incurred research and
development expenses of approximately RMB10.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 as compared to approximately
RMB6.2 million in 2017, resulting from hiring additional research
and development personnel, especially for the development
of the passenger vehicles’ decorative components and parts.
In addition, we incurred expenses of approximately RMB12.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared to
approximately RMB9.9 million in 2017 in relation to the Listing.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased from approximately RMB4.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB7.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an
increase of approximately 57.6%, which was mainly attributable
to increase in our average balance of bank and other loans
during 2018.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

Analysis

HEMX
HERYREZEC0I7TE1I2A3IBIEEENHAR
A SEBTIEEEE2018FE 12 A31 A ILEEHLY
ARB7IEEIL  HIEXAE51.9%  ZENEB
EHANMEE BRI AN R EBEREMESLEREENE
A (BREEERME SO EEREREE M
FEMMELNS THERS) RGN -

THRX

THE S HEE2017F12A31B IFFENHOAR
31 3E BT EHE2018F12A31H ILFEEW
HWARMA1 6B 8T - BIER32.9%  ZILNEE
ARERMMESREERBIBAMY - LEZ  #2
2018F 12 A31HILFE - BB EEMERZLD
ARBA10.6BET » M2017E L AAREKE2H
B RAREFEBEIMIEAE @ FHI2ANRFA%
FRERMTIHESR - B/ - HAIREZR2018
FI2ANAEFERBMLETEERZIHARE
1248870 M2017FHABAREIIBETT °

B3 R AR
B R AN E2017E12A31B IFEEHHAR
KA SE BT EE E 2018512 A31 A ILEE LY
ARBT76EEIL  EIELAS7.6%  ZENEE
EAR2018FH MM IRIT R E M BRI 585
DRETEL o



Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI Rk i

Income tax

Our income tax expense decreased from approximately
RMB8.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
approximately RMB4.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing a decrease of approximately 44.8%. Such
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in profit before
tax for the period. The effective tax rates decreased from
approximately 20.0% for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
approximately 14.7% for the year ended 31 December 2018,
mainly due to the recognition of withholding tax in connection
with retained profits to be distributed by Xian Tianrui in 2017.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year decreased
from approximately RMB35.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately RMB28.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018, representing a decrease of
approximately 20.1%.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group’s business operations are primarily financed by cash
generated from operating activities, net proceeds received from
the global offering of the Company completed in January 2019
and bank and other loans. As of 31 December 2018 and 2017,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB13.4 million and RMB27.7 million, respectively.

The Group monitors the cash flows and cash balance on a
regular basis and seek to maintain optimal level of liquidity that
can meet the working capital needs while supporting a healthy
level of business and its various growth strategies.

Bank and Other Loans

Our bank and other loans decreased from approximately
RMB93.1 million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB52.8 million as at 31 December 2018. Bank and other
loans in the amounts of approximately RMB52.8 million (2017:
approximately RMB 93.1 million) were secured by trade and
bills receivables, property, plant and equipment, land use right
of the Group and guaranteed by the controlling shareholders.

FrEHirx

FIERMX HEE2017F12A31H IEFERL
ARKBB8EELHMEHZE2018F12A31HIEF
ERHARKIBEETT - MIEX A44.8% ° %R
LEFEHRBABRTB AT - EEREEH
F2017F12A31HIEFERL20.0% HPEHE
2018F 12 A3 HIEFEMHN14.7% » TEZHR
2017 F AL Kin s T 9 Ik 2 (R E i F R T8 41
FRFTEN ©

FREF
AR ElRE - FREMEEHZE2017412 731
BIEFEMHARKIS1HETTREHZ20184F
12A31BIEFEMNHARK28.0FETT  AIELD
20.1% o

RBES - URERRERERE

REBMNEBRKELESTERALEETHMEH
&~ AARTE2019F 1 AR 2 BREEE P15 30E
FRE LA R IRTT R HAIEFR o PR20184F K 2017412
A31A  AEERERREEEMHIRNOAEAR
A3 AEETLRARK2TTEET

AEBENERRERERBSEL  SRERD
BeHRHNRENRE B EEEem®E [
R IR Al TR RS R B B R L B TR RRAS -

HITREMER
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BEL(2017F  HARKEIBA1EEL)  AASE
BB HRWFIAREWREE - WE - BE &K
& THbfF R R R IR IR BRAE(R o
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Management Discussion and

BRI Rb il

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017 and 2018 were at

254.5% and 45.7%, respectively.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity as at
the end of the respective year. Total debts include all interest-
bearing bank and other loans.

Secured Assets
Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by the
following assets of the Group:

Analysis

BEXRAELE
R2017E % 2018E12A31H » BB ELEH 5
F254.5% K 45.7% °

ERBELFEER S FRNEH B AEDE
B - ABRRBEMARTERITEEMER -

BIERERE
AL EOE TR R IR A B A TAE
IERIR -

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

Property, plant and equipment Y% - BE KRB 57,060 47,243
Lease prepayments HETERNFIA 9,486 9,692
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EERIE N R E R 41,241 76,953
107,787 133,888

Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2018, the capital expenditures were
approximately RMB34.1 million (2017: approximately RMB18.4
million). The capital expenditure incurred for the year ended
31 December 2018 primarily related to the construction of new
plants and the purchase of new machinery and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the capital commitments in respect
of property, plant and equipment contracted for approximately
RMB34.0 million (2017: approximately RMB22.9 million).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2017: RMBNIil).

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A
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MR2018%F12A31H - EAMI N ABARE341H
BIL(2017F - Y ARME18.4HETT) - B E2018
FI2ANBALEFEEANEARAI T ZHHER
B BEMESLEREEE -

BAEYE

R 20185 12A31H - AEEBOWE BEM
BENAENBAREI4.05ET(20174F - KA
REE2OHETT) ©

RREE
20185127310 » AEBWEEMERNKAE
B(20175 : ARBZT) »
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FLUCTUATION OF RMB EXCHANGE RATE AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The majority of the Group’s business and all bank borrowings
are denominated and accounted for in RMB. Therefore, the
Group does not have significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuation.

The Board does not expect the fluctuation of RMB exchange
rate and other foreign exchange fluctuations will have material
impact on the business operations or financial results of the
Group. The Group will closely monitor the foreign exchange
market and take appropriate and effective measures from time
to time to reduce any negative impact from exchange-rate risk
to the furthest extent.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no significant investments held or material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK$12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB10,220,000),
representing HK$0.6 cents per ordinary Share, for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The proposed final dividend is
subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ARWERKE & E 5 E S

REBOBABDER R E2ERITEFTHAARE
RSP - BEEBAINELBER -

EESLTEPARBER R BEEIVEELR
BRHAEENEGRLABREARE - £A%H
BB EHNETIS L TEERA B G R
DA T B R I SR R ) B R

FENEARE  EXAWBSIERHEESR

BE20185F12A31HIEFE - AREILETIAT
FERRE LB R R K2 QAR E AW M
o

BRE

EEERHRNEE2018FE12A31B ILFE
RHARE B 12,000,000 7T (FE R AR EE
10,220,0007T) * HHE R EBIR0.6/81l - 2%
KREA BAR R RN EREREBEFE A EiEE

=

[
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 425 full time
employees (2017: 381). For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group incurred total staff costs of approximately RMB29.8
million (2017: approximately RMB23.3 million), representing an
increase of approximately 27.9% as compared with those in
2017.

The remuneration policy of our Group to reward its
employees and executives is based on their performance,
qualifications, competence displayed and market comparable.
Remuneration package typically comprises salaries and other
benefits, discretionary bonuses, retirement benefits scheme
contributions.

In order to retain and develop the knowledge, skill level and
quality of our employees, the Group places a strong emphasis
on training our employees. In addition, the Group offers a
competitive remuneration package to retain elite employees,
and reviews the package annually according to industry
benchmark and financial results as well as the individual
performance of employees.

USE OF PROCEEDS

On 15 January 2019, the shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, pursuant to which
500,000,000 shares were issued by the Company at the offering
price of HK$0.25 per share, with net proceeds of approximately
HK$82.1 million after deducting underwriting commissions and
other related listing expenses. As of the date of this report, the
Company does not anticipate any change to its plan on the use
of proceeds as stated in the prospectus of the Company dated
31 December 2018.

MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the event after the reporting period are set out in note
28 to the financial statements in this annual report.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

Analysis

B8 & FHEBUR
MR2018F12H31H » AEEHKF425F2BES
(20174 : 3814) - BLE 201812 A31H L&
g AEEEENE TRABRELN A ARE29.8
BAEL(2017F WA ARE233EET) &
2017 1L hN%I27.9% ©

AEENFMBRRIZERE RITBRABNKRR - B
&~ PrRIRAE ) K5 Al LUK 518 S HO 22D -
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PREEFETBIBER -

RBREEBILEENE  RSEREKFLE
g AEEBRETIEREEET - bt AEERH
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EAE N B 75 S48 DA Ko R B WO (B 5l 2R 3R 4 Fr B B
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FrEFE R

R2019F 1A 16H » RARIRMOEBRAAERE
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group aim to strengthen our leading position in the heavy
trucks’ interior decorative product market and increase our
market share in the passenger vehicles’ interior decorative
products market in North West China by pursuing the following
strategies:

To satisfy the anticipated increase in the demand of our
automotive decorative products, we intend to purchase new
machinery and equipment and upgrade and automate our
existing production lines to increase our production capacity,
product quality and efficiency.

We plan to expand our research facility by modifying and
converting part of our existing office area to a larger research
and development centre. We plan to enhance our research
and development capability by recruiting relevant talents in the
industry, purchasing design and simulation software licenses.

Leveraging our experience, technical expertise and know-
how accumulated over the years, we analyse the latest
technological trends and introduce new products in response
to our customers’ needs and requirements to enhance our
market penetration and broaden our product offerings.

We intend to allocate more resources and increase our market
penetration in the automotive interior decorative product market
in North West China and its surrounding regions. We plan to
increase our sales and marketing efforts in North West China
to develop new relationships and deepen existing relationships
with our target customers in these areas.

In order to better manage our growing business, we plan to
upgrade our enterprise resource planning system, human
resources information system and financial information system
to assist us in our day-to-day operational tasks.

RARREE

AEBEEABERA MREZEAEELEHET
L BRI -REE A fnh 5 AR ST L S IR AN E I
R EIPRAESR AR E A E R T IS TS -

RimRRPTEMITERFE ROEIIERE - JiFH
BEAOMELRE  YAENBBCRELE
R AMERIEGRMANEER SN  EREERN
$ o

B EEERRIERARAEN —F 0 BRI
KBS RK — E AR BT 3 P D AT FE B IR AT 35 R
i o R EIEEEBENRBAT KBER K
BRI AR R PRV B RE S -

BREBMZFRENER  BMERIAE - &
IO AT S O BATE A HE h e o DAFE ST 2 AP
EPHBRREFR  BARMTIHLEER - BAK
FIRERELE -

BB B PR K K A2 bR 80T EE A Em T
BREEZERKIENEMNTISLEEX - B
I MAEFEFEILNEEMTISHENE - AEZ
FRBERABEIIMARERRTLNREGRIRE -

REIFHER R MR SIEROER - RIFEEITR
BAEEERRBIZS - ANEREARGRLE
BEMEG - UipB M A S EETE -
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jianli ({RZF)), aged 55, is one of the founders of our
Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of our Board, the
chief executive officer and the general manager of our Group.
Mr. Hou is mainly responsible for the overall management,
operations, strategic development and business planning of
our Group. Mr. Hou joined our Group in May 2009 and has
been acting as executive director and general manager of Xian
Tianrui since then. He was appointed as our Director on 27
April 2017 and was redesignated as our Executive Director on
9 May 2018. Mr. Hou is also the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Hou is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company.

Mr. Hou also possesses over 30 years of experience in the
manufacturing industry. From August 1985 to January 2000,
Mr. Hou successively served as technician, workshop deputy
director, branch manager, chief engineer and head of the
composite packaging materials research institute of Prgg&
=88 HE I BE (Shaanxi Province Pioneer Machinery Factory*).
Since January 2000, Mr. Hou served as legal representative
and director of B# M K BEENH A R A 7 (Baoji Tianxiang
Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd.*) .

Mr. Hou graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Technology (BRZa
T 2Pt ) (now known as Shaanxi University of Technology (B
FHIE T AKE)) in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in industrial
electronic automation in July 1985.

Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen, who is our Controlling
Shareholder, our Executive Director and the deputy general
manager of our Group.

Ms. Chen Bierui (BRBI#i), aged 57, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director and the deputy general
manager of our Group. Ms. Chen is mainly responsible for
administrative management and business operation of our
Group. Ms. Chen joined our Group in May 2009, she was
appointed as our Director on 27 April 2017 and redesignated
as our Executive Director on 9 May 2018. Ms. Chen is also a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A
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Ms. Chen possesses over 10 years of experience in the
manufacturing industry. From August 1985 to May 1996,
Ms. Chen served as a general staff in BRF& 5 82 # R
(Shaanxi Province Pioneer Machinery Factory*). Ms. Chen
also possesses over 20 years of experience in the information
technology industry. From June 1996 to December 2016, Ms.
Chen served as director of information engineering department
and deputy director of municipal agricultural information
centre of E# M EHLZ B ZLFT (Baoji City Scientific and
Technological Information Research Institute™).

Ms. Chen graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Technology (Bt
PAEIEPRR) (now known as Shaanxi University of Technology (Bt
FHIE T K2)) in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in industrial
electronic automation in July 1985.

Ms. Chen is the spouse of Mr. Hou, who is our Controlling
Shareholder, our Executive Director, the chairman of our Board,
the chief executive officer and the general manager of our
Group.

Mr. Zhao Shijie (it ££), aged 36, is our Executive Director,
the chief financial officer of our Group, the secretary of
our Board and one of the joint company secretaries of our
Company. Mr. Zhao is primarily responsible for the accounting
and financial management of our Group and assisting our
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Zhao joined our
Group in June 2016. He was appointed as our Director on 27
April 2017 and redesignated as our Executive Director on 9
May 2018.

Mr. Zhao has over 12 years of experience in accounting. From
July 2006 to August 2011, Mr. Zhao served as project assistant
and project manager at the Chongqging branch of Pan-China
Certified Public Accountants LLP (Kf2&stEmE#AT). From
August 2011 to May 2016, Mr. Zhao served as deputy general
manager and chief financial officer of 1t &7 IF i 22 B 28 4,
A% H AR A7 (Beijing Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments Co.,
Ltd*), the shares of which were listed on the Main Board (stock
code: 1858).

Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
Chongging University (EEAX2) in the PRC in June 2006.

BRIZTHRBUETEBEE10FE5H - B198548A
F1996F5 7 MR T E(TPRIE R So S8 MM R ) X
WMET - ME TN EBRINITERERB20F KL
B o §19096F6 A E2016F 128 - ML +IEEE
EMR R EBMEAEEIREBEELRTEEES
FOBIEE -

BRZ X 19857 AR XN BPR7 T2k GRAE
RPAETRE) BETIXERABCEXELE

fiz o

R RBPIERER - HMNRITESE &=
RRITHAEE R AR EBLIR R T AR

L E - 3658 0 BERMNRTES - A5H
S REREZENERARREP - EATR]
WE - BEIETZAEAEENSHIRIBERT
B UHHMEESRECEEALAEH - HAER
2016F6 A IIAREE o HR2017F4 427 HEZR
EARMOES  WH2018F5 A9B FE AR
HEITES o

WA BEE@I12F KR - B20066 7=
201148 A » BMIuER KBS EBEE D AT
EAEEERIBELRE - B20116F8HE20165F
5 BEE—EHEFIRMELIEERERMR
BBERAR(ERHRERET (ARG RE - 1858)
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fiz o

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2018 19



20

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSHRELEBEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Honggiang (&AL ), aged 49, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December
2018 and is also the chairman of the remuneration committee
of the Company and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Zhu has over 17 years of experience in legal
practice in the PRC. He joined Shaanxi Yongjia Law Firm (B
KERBIEET) in October 2001 as a lawyer and the deputy
director and is currently a partner of the law firm.

Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in law from Northwest College
of Political Science and Law (FE4LBUAEBRT ) (now known as
Northwest University of Political Science and Law (FAdbBUE
KE)) through self-study higher education examination (&
EHEBHEZR) in the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Zhu obtained
a bachelor’s degree in law from Evening College of Xi'an
Technological Institute (FA% T3 2kt ) (now known as Xi'an
Technological University (Fa% T % AK2)) in the PRC in July
2005. Mr. Zhu was admitted as a PRC lawyer by the Shaanxi
Provincial Department of Justice (BRPE4& al;AEE) in October
2001.

Mr. Zhou Genshu (AR #), aged 54, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December 2018 and
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Company
and a member of each of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Zhou has over 23
years of experience in the education industry. Since November
1995, he worked in the School of Materials Science and
Engineering of Xi'an Jiaotong University ( 78% & 8 A 24 £ R}
ER T f2 2657 ) successively as associate professor, professor
and doctorial supervisor and is mainly responsible for lecturing
and material science research. During such period, he has
hosted several important scientific research projects and
published academic papers on reputable scientific journals.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A
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Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in foundry engineering
and a master’s degree in foundry engineering from
Tsinghua University (JB#2 K ) in July 1986 and August
1989 respectively. He obtained a doctoral degree in foundry
engineering from Northwestern Poly-technical University (78
bt T KAL) in October 1993. He obtained a post-doctoral
certificate in material science and engineering from National
Post-Doctoral Regulatory Committee (2Bl /14 EIBEEZE )
in December 1995. He serves as the committee member and
secretary of the Typical Component Heat Treatment Technology
Committee of the Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society
(2ERRBEEelM I THHERIERMZEZE <€) since October
2006, the standing committee member of the Heat Treatment
Branch of Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society ( &1 BI#
TRESHEIEHE) since July 2015 and the chairman of the
Material and Heat Treatment Branch of the Shaanxi Provincial
Mechanical Engineering Society (PRFaE #iH TIZE2 & Mk K&
R @) since March 2016. He has been granted several
awards including the third prize of Shaanxi Province Science
and Technology Award, the second prize of Xi'an City Science
and Technology Award, the second prize of Chinese University
Science and Technology Award and the Technology Innovation
Award of Heat Treatment Society.

Mr. Shin Yick Fabian (%% ), aged 50, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December 2018
and is also a member of each of the audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Shin possesses
over 28 years experience in finance and investment banking.

Mr. Shin is currently an independent non-executive director of
Lisi Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 526) and Newton
Resources Limited (stock code: 1231), a non-executive
director of Pak Tak International Limited (stock code: 2668),
those companies are listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, and a non-executive director of BIO-
key International, Inc. (NASDAQ: BKYI), a company whose
shares are traded at the Nasdaq stock market of the United
States. He was a senior consultant of a China-based securities
company from June 2018 to January 2019, the chief executive
officer of a private corporate financial company from July
2015 to May 2018 and the deputy chief executive officer of
CMB International Capital Corporation Limited from February
2010 to July 2015. Prior to joining CMB International Capital
Corporation Limited, he worked in several investment banks in
Hong Kong.

BSEAEDRIFR19869F7 A 198948 AES /5K
EREETRRI¥S LB NEETIRIEE LS
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Mr. Shin was an independent non-executive director of
Huabang Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 3638) from
30 September 2016 to 2 October 2018 and an independent
non-executive director of China Shun Ke Long Holdings Limited
(stock code: 974) from 19 August 2015 to 31 October 2018.

Mr. Shin graduated from the University of Birmingham in
England with a bachelor’'s degree in commerce in July 1990.
After graduation, he worked in the audit department of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu. He had also worked in a listed company in
Hong Kong as group financial controller. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hou Jianli ({RZF), aged 55, is one of the founders of our
Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of our Board, the
chief executive officer and the general manager of our Group.
For further details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Executive Directors” in this section above.

Ms. Chen Bierui (BR5I#i), aged 57, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director and the deputy general
manager of our Group. For further details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section above.

Mr. Zhao Shijie (#tt#E), aged 36, is our Executive Director,
the chief financial officer of our Group, secretary of our Board
and joint company secretary of our Company. For further
details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors” in this section above.

Mr. Wang Jun (J£E), aged 35, is our deputy general
manager of our Group. He is mainly responsible for product
development and operation of our Group. He joined our Group
in May 2010 and was appointed as the head of our research
and development department of Xian Tianrui. He was then
promoted to the deputy general manager of Xian Tianrui in
September 2016.
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Mr. Wang has over 13 years of experience in the business of
mould manufacturing industry. From May 2005 to May 2010, he
worked as the head of engineering department and domestic
marketing department of BB EMMEI AR 2 7] (Nantong
Chaoda Machinery Technology Co., Ltd.*) (now known as g
BRBEREEHRM AR A (Nantong Chaoda Equipment Co.,
Ltd.")).

Mr. Wang obtained a graduation certificate in business and
administration through online courses in Beihang University (3t
EMZEMAKE) in the PRC in January 2012.

Mr. Xu Yunhua ($FZ#), aged 41, is our head of the sales
department. He is mainly responsible for sales management
of Xian Tianrui. He joined our Group in September 2010 and
was appointed as sales supervisor of Xian Tianrui. He was then
promoted to the head of the sales department of Xian Tianrui in
December 2012.

Mr. Xu has over 15 years of experience in the sales industry.
From August 2003 to September 2010, he worked successively
as a salesman, the assistant section head of the sales
department and the head of the plastic production factory of &
#HMEAE X AR AT (Baoji Wanhe Enterprise Co., Ltd*).

Mr. Xu obtained his technical secondary school diploma in
industrial electronic automation from Baoji Industrial School (&
T T ¥ 24 )(now known as Baiji Vocational and Technical
College (E# B ZEHIITET)) in July 1997.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Zhao Shijie (#tt#), aged 36, was appointed as one of
our joint company secretaries of our Company on 9 May 2018.
He is also our Executive Director, the chief financial officer of
our Group and the secretary of our Board. For his qualifications
and experience, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Executive Directors” in this section.
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Mr. Ip Pui Sum (Z51#), aged 59, was appointed as one of
our joint company secretaries of our Company on 9 May 2018.
Mr. Ip has been the partner of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified
Public Accountants since 1999 whose scope of services
include the provision of financial statement audit, accounting
and company secretary services. Mr. Ip has been appointed
as the company secretary of various companies listed on
the Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange including
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Group (stock code: 322),
Luoyang Glass Company Limited (stock code: 1108), National
Agricultural Holdings Limited (stock code: 1236), Orient Victory
Travel Group Company Limited (stock code: 0265), Baofeng
Modern International Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
1121) and Asiaray Media Group Limited (stock code: 1993)
since January 1996, August 2008, December 2011, October
2014, April 2017 and June 2017 respectively and one of the
joint company secretaries of 3t RH&EY IFiEBEEEMRHD AR
‘A 7] (Beijing Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments Co., Ltd.*)
(stock code:1858) and ZACD Group Ltd. (stock code: 8313)
since March 2015 and July 2017 respectively.

Mr. Ip obtained a higher diploma in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1982 and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Henley Management College and Brunel University in May
1997. Mr. Ip is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in
Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.
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IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNMENT CODE

Our Company has committed to delivering and maintaining
a higher standard of corporate governance to meet business
needs and shareholders’ expectation. Our Company has
adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of our Company’s corporate
governance practices. The Corporate Governance Code has
been applicable to our Company with effect from the Listing
Date, save for the following deviation:

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the role of chairman and the chief executive should
be segregated and should not be performed by the same
individual. However, Mr. Hou Jianli currently performs the roles
as the chairman and general manager. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and general manager in the
same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within our Group and enables more efficient overall strategic
planning for our Group. The Board considers that the balance
of power and authority will not be impaired by the present
arrangement and this structure will enable our Company to
make and implement decisions promptly and effectively. After
taking into account the overall circumstances of our Group, the
Board will continue to review and consider whether the duties
of the chairman and general manager should be separated.

Save as disclosed above, our Company will comply with
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. Our Directors will review our corporate
governance policies and compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code each financial year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders. The Board has established
three Board committees, being the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) (each a “Board Committee” and collectively
the “Board Committees”), to oversee different areas of the
Company’s affairs. As of the date of this annual report, the
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Bierui

Mr. Zhao Shijie

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Shin Yick Fabian

Their biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 18 to 24 in the annual report. A list of the Directors
identifying their role and function and whether they are
independent non-executive Directors are available on the
Company’s website.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company commencing from 15 January 2019
for an initial term of three years unless terminated by either
party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing to the
other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter with our Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from 15 January 2019 unless
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice to the other party.

The relationship of the chairman and general manager Mr. Hou
Jianli and Executive Director Ms. Chen Bierui is husband and
wife. Other than that, there is no financial, business or other
material/relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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The functions and duties of the Board include but are not
limited to: convening Shareholders’ general meetings and
reporting the Board’s work at the Shareholders’ general
meetings; implementing the resolutions passed at the
Shareholders’ general meetings; determining our business
plans and investment plans; preparing annual budget
proposals and final accounts proposals; preparing plans for
profit distribution and recovery of losses; preparing plans for
the increase or decrease in registered capital; and exercising
other power, functions and duties as conferred by the Articles
of Association. Each of our Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Company, and
the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management. The Board also reviews
the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report to ensure
compliance.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with reasonable
care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of
the Company. Every newly appointed Director receives an
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and that he/she is
fully aware of his duties and responsibilities as a director under
applicable rules and requirements.

On 18 December 2018, the Company, together with its
Hong Kong legal advisers, organized training sessions
for the Directors explaining the on-going obligations and
responsibilities as a director of a Hong Kong listed company.
In addition, briefings and updates on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements are provided to each of the Directors during
Board meetings to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Company to
protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and the
Company.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One
of the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive director has submitted annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of
such confirmations, the Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
and Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has
its defined and written terms of reference approved by the
Board covering its duties, powers and functions. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee are respectively available on the
Company’s website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources

to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Company established the audit committee on 18 December
2018 with its written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the audit committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of external auditors; review the financial statements
and material advice in respect of financial reporting; and
oversee internal control procedures of our Company.

Our audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr.
Zhou Genshu, Mr. Shin Yick Fabian and Mr. Zhu Honggiang.
Mr. Zhou Genshu is the chairman of our audit committee.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee on 26 March
2019, the Audit Committee has reviewed, among other things,
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company, report prepared by the
external auditors covering major findings in the course of
the audit, the risk management and internal control systems
and the overall effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function and the accounting and financial reporting matters,
and selection and appointment of the external auditors. No
meeting was held by the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2018 because the Company was listed on
15 January 2019.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the remuneration committee on 18
December 2018 with its written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and paragraph B.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors and
senior management of our Group; review performance based
remuneration; and ensure none of our Directors determine their
own remuneration.
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Our remuneration committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Zhu Honggiang , Mr. Zhou Genshu and Ms. Chen
Bierui. Mr. Zhu Honggiang is the chairman of our remuneration
committee.

Pursuant to the first meeting of the Remuneration Committee
on 26 March 2019, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration policy and structure relating to the Directors
and senior management of the Company. No meeting was
held by the Remuneration Committee during the year ended
31 December 2018 because the Company was listed on 15
January 2019.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements
in this annual report.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. The remuneration of the
senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2018 is as follows:

Remuneration band (HK$)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the nomination committee on
18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with paragraph A.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the nomination committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors.

Our nomination committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Hou Jianli, Mr. Zhou Genshu and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian. Mr.
Hou Jianli is the chairman of our nomination committee.

Pursuant to the first meeting of the Nomination Committee on
26 March 2019, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
policy for the nomination of Directors, the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. No meeting was held by
the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December
2018 because the Company was listed on 15 January 2019.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”).The Nomination Committee will assess
the candidate or incumbent on criteria such as education
background, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and report to the Board when necessary.
Also, the Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Nomination Policy and will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s board of
directors. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

The Board developed, reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior

management, and the Company’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the

compliance of Model Code, and the Company’s compliance

with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this

Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS
The attendance record of each of the current Directors at
the Board and Board committee meetings and the general

meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in the table below. The Directors did
not authorize any alternate Director to attend Board or Board
Committee meetings.

Corporate Governance Report
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PR BI85 22 4 TiE A A A
Mr. Zhao Shijie N/A N/A N/A 2/2
A A T EA TiEA TiEA
Mr. Zhu Honggiang N/A N/A N/A 1/1
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Notes:

1. The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January
2019 and there were no meetings convened by the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee the during the year ended 31 December 2018.

2. As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15
January 2019, two Board meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD MEETINGS

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held regularly
at least four times each year and shall be convened by the
chairman of the Board of Directors. If a Director is unable to
attend a Board meeting, he may appoint another Director
by a written power of attorney to attend on his behalf. Such
a power of attorney shall specify the scope of authorization.
Directors attending Board meetings on behalf of other directors
shall exercise their power as directors within their scope of
authorization. If a Director fails to attend a Board meeting and
does not appoint an attorney to attend, the Director is deemed
to have waived his rights to vote at that meeting. Each Director
shall have one vote. Questions arising at any meetings of the
Board of Directors shall be determined by a majority of votes.
Where the numbers of votes cast for and against a resolution
are equal, the chairman shall have the right to cast an
additional vote.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ and employees’
securities transactions. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors
and members of the senior management confirmed that they
have complied with the relevant provisions of the Model Code
throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

To maintain good corporate governance practices and
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws, the
Company appointed Mr. Zhao Shijie (Executive Director)
and Mr. Ip Pui Sum as the joint company secretaries. Mr. Ip
Pui Sum assists Mr. Zhao Shijie in performing his duties as
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Zhao Shijie is the main
contact person of the Company. The joint company secretaries
confirmed having received no less than 15 hours’ professional
training.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
the Company’s assets and the interests of Shareholders.
Subsequent to the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange
on the Listing Date, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company, believing that the internal control
system is effective and adequate.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of the
Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature
and the service charges of non-audit services performed by
KPMG and considered that such services have no adverse
effect on the independence of the external auditor.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees payable to
KPMG in respect of its annual audit services provided to the
Company was RMB1.3 million.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit

Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditor during the year under review.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Our Company will appoint Innovax Capital as our compliance
adviser pursuant to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant
to Rule 3A.23 of the Listing Rules, the compliance adviser will
advise our Company in the following circumstances:

(1) before the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

(2) where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or
connected transaction under the Listing Rules, is
contemplated by our Group, including but not limited to
share issues and share repurchases;

(8) where our Company proposes to use the proceeds of the
Global Offering in a manner different from that detailed
in the Prospectus or where our business activities,
developments or results deviate from any forecast,
estimate, or other information in the Prospectus; and

(4) where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of our
Company regarding unusual movements in the price or
trading volume of our Shares or any other matters under
Rules 13.10 of the Listing Rules.

The term of this appointment of the compliance adviser shall
commence on the Listing Date and is expected to end on the
date on which our Company complies with Rule 13.46 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the financial results for the first full
financial year commencing after the Listing Date and such
appointment may be subject to extension by mutual agreement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held
in each year and at the place as may be determined by the
Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting
(“EGM”).
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETINGS

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or a Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company by
mail to 9/F., MW Tower, No. 111 Bonham Strand, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and
other stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting,
the annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars and the Company’s website at www.trgcns.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Conditionally adopted by a special resolution dated 18
December 2018, the Articles of Association were adopted with
effect from the Listing Date. As at the date of this report, no
change has been made to the Articles of Association after the
Listing Date.

The Articles of Association are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to
prepare accounts of the Group and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and the Company’s
management will provide information and explanation to
the Board to enable it to make informed assessments of the
financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in
the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this annual
report.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group prepared the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guidelines”) of Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Environmental, Social
and Governance Report is intended to provide environmental
performance and social performance of the Group from
January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 (the “Reporting
Period”), mainly including the environmental and social issues
related to the sustainable development of the Group which
the stakeholders concern, so that key stakeholders can better
understand the Group’s sustainable development concepts,
measures and related performance, etc. The Environmental,
Social and Governance Report should be read in conjunction
with the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 25 to 37 of the annual report to provide a comprehensive
understanding of the Group’s performance.

PARTICIPATION AND CONTACT OF STAKEHOLDERS
The Group expects to respond to focus of different stakeholders
on our performance of environmental and social responsibilities
through the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
and incorporate the opinions of various stakeholders into the
management of corporate sustainability. If the shareholder has
any comments on the contents of the Group’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, please feel free to send a letter
to the Company’s main office in Hong Kong: 9/F, MW Tower, No.
111 Bonham Strand East, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

ENVIRONMENT

1.1 Emission management
The Group attaches great importance to the management
of emissions and wastes, and strictly abides by the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Ambient Noise Pollution, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Wastes, and other laws and regulations.
During the Reporting Period, we did not suffer any
material fines or penalties for violating any environmental
laws or regulations.
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In the production process of the Group, water will be
used in the cooling process. To reduce water usage, the
water used in the cooling process will be recycled for
production. Therefore, we do not produce large amounts
of industrial wastewater throughout the production
process. The domestic wastewater generated by the
Group will be discharged into the municipal sewage pipe
network after being treated by the treatment facilities
such as grease traps and septic tanks, and finally enter
the sewage treatment plant.

Main noise sources of the Group are air compressors,
fans, injection molding machines, crushers, circulating
pumps, cooling towers and other equipment noise.
The Group selects low-noise equipment, rationally
plans the layout of the plant, arranges various types
of noise equipment indoors or between equipment, or
adopts vibration and noise reduction measures for noise
equipment, and sets greening to reduce noise, so as to
reduce influences on the surrounding environment.

The Group adopts organized emissions on dust and
organic waste gases from different stages of the
production process. The dust generated in the production
process is dedusted by a bag filter, and a gas collecting
hood is set to collect the organic waste gas generated
in the production process, and then collected and
treated by a special exhaust gas treatment facility by
“UV photolysis + activated carbon adsorption”. After the
treatment, dust and organic waste gas are discharged
through a dedicated exhaust pipe. The exhaust gas has
reached the emission standards required by national
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s emissions of
dust and organic waste gas are as follows:
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Unit Emission

Main emissions FEHHY B B2
Dust e Kg 85.44
Nitrogen oxide RE/EY Kg 96.00
Toluene R Kg 156.16
Xylene R Kg 160.91
Non-methane hydrocarbon FER T B AL Kg 245.76
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The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group are as
follows:

REEPRERERBEIELT

Greenhouse gas category Emission Emission density
AEREER & BREE

(T) (T/M2)
CcO2 50 0.00094

The solid waste generated in the production process of
the Group mainly includes domestic garbage, production
solid waste and dangerous solid waste.

Domestic garbage is classified and collected by garbage
bins and then disposed of by the sanitation department.
Production solid waste is mainly the scrap produced
in the production process. After being collected, it is
temporarily stored in the temporary storage area for
general waste, and later deliver to recycling units through
recycling & comprehensive utilization or regular sales.
This would help reduce waste disposal and increase cost
effectiveness. Dangerous solid waste is mainly hazardous
waste, such as waste oil, waste activated carbon, used
lamp and waste titanium dioxide photocatalyst plates,
etc. Waste oils and fats are regularly entrusted to qualified
disposal suppliers by the government for safe disposal.
Activated carbon, UV photolysis lamps and titanium
dioxide photocatalyst plates are regularly replaced. To
reduce waste, the hazardous wastes generated during
the production process are collected in special containers
and temporarily stored in the temporary storage for
hazardous wastes, and are regularly entrusted to qualified
disposal suppliers by the government for safe disposal.

During the Reporting Period, data of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste generated by the Group is as follows:
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Emission Emission density

Type Rl B E HEE
(T) (T/M2)

Hazardous waste BEREZEY 2.3 0.00004
Harmless waste mEREEY) 4 0.00007
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1.2 Save resources

The Group’s operation activities mainly use water,
electricity and natural gas. We actively strengthen the
management of water, electricity and other resources
in all sectors, improve employees’ awareness of energy
conservation and environmental protection, and enhance
resource use efficiency. Including but not limited to the
following measures:

° We use plastic crates in the warehousing and
transportation sectors to replace original cartons,
which can reduce waste of resources and
production costs.

o Encourage employees to turn off all computers
and factories/office equipment, appliances and air
conditioners when no one is using them.

° Promote employees to consciously save water and
use the remaining water to clean and water plants.

o Through the office automation system, more-use
of e-mail, implementation of paperless office, use
of double-sided printing, waste paper recycling, in
order to minimize paper use.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s major energy
and resource consumption were as follows:

1.2 FHER
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Usage Usage density
Energy category BeREE R AE AERE
Water 7K 15,273T 0.3T/M2
Electricity £ 520,000KWH 9.7KWH/M2
Natural gas KA 280,000M3 5.2M3/M2
Packaging materials BEME 490T 0.009T/M2
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CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

2.1

Employment

We have a highly transparent recruitment process
that strives to provide fair employment opportunities,
and create a respectful work environment for our
employees. The Group vigorously advocates anti-
discrimination, and formulates relevant policies
to treat others with fairness and dignity. Our
recruitment of employees will be based on a range
of diversity, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.

The Group’s remuneration policy is an award
to employees based on their performance,
qualifications, demonstrated ability and market
comparable levels. Remuneration benefits generally
include salaries and other benefits, discretionary
bonuses, and retirement benefit plan contributions.
The Group provides competitive remuneration
benefits to retain outstanding employees, and
conducts an annual review of remuneration benefits
based on industry benchmarks and financial
performance as well as individual performance of
employees.

The Group provides diversified benefits to
employees, and it pays social security and housing
provident fund for all employees. We provide
employees with staff quarters and food allowances,
and also arrange for additional benefits to be paid
to employees during the holidays. All employees
are entitled to holidays covered by local labor laws.
In the case of dismissal, the Labor Contract of
employees who do not meet the requirements of the
Labor Law will be terminated according to the Labor
Law and the Company’s rules and regulations.
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Employee distribution: BINH:
Total number wy 425
Male 3 Female Z
By gender gz ERs)
313 112

Under 35 36-45 46-55 Over 55

By age group REWRAER 5 358 LT 36-457% 46-555% 5585 A £
256 102 55 12
2.2 Health and safety 22 fEEHEZR

The Group has always attached great importance
to the health and safety of employees, and is
committed to providing employees with a safe
working environment to avoid occupational hazards.
The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, the Safe Production Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Fire Law of
the People’s Republic of China, and other laws and
regulations.

The Group requires the newly recruited employees,
to carrying the entry medical examination report
and pays the social insurance and housing fund
(E¥—%) for the employees according to the
statutory requirements. We also provide regular
safety training to the employees to ensure that they
understand the dangerous situation at work. At the
same time, we also attach importance to employee
sports, set up table tennis, basketball, badminton
sports venues and facilities for employees to
exercise.
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We have implemented infrastructure and safety
policies, in order to ensure equipment safety
and prevent or minimize exposure to hazardous
materials. The Group has established internal
safety policies, providing guidance to employees
in maintaining a safe working environment, and
assign responsibility for maintaining safe work
spaces to each department. We have established
the Safety Management Committee consisting of
representatives from management and employees.
The Safety Management Committee ensures
that all responsible departments conduct safety
training, report accidents and implement accident
prevention procedures. The Group also has fire
prevention facilities and conducts fire drills on a
regular basis. Production employees receive regular
training on equipment operation and occupational
safety equipment. We have also adopted accident
handling policies, in order to minimize losses and
increase our response time in accident handling.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
suffer any major work-related injuries or fatalities
caused by work. We have complied with all relevant
laws, regulations and administrative regulations
in all major aspects of health and work safety,
and have not received any serious penalties from
Chinese regulatory authorities.
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2.3 Development and training

The Group provides a variety of training for all
employees to improve their skills and meet their
needs. The initial entry training of employees,
including company and department regulations,
job responsibilities, job skills, safety production and
career development planning, can help employees
understand the Company as soon as possible
and adapt to the job. For in-service employees,
the Group provides targeted training to adapt
to its career development, and also encourages
employees to actively participate in job-related
training organized by external organizations. We
also invite lawyers and other professionals to provide
training to the directors and senior management
of the Group, so as to keep them informed of the
latest company regulations, regulatory policies,
corporate governance and other information, and
arrange company secretaries and related personnel
to participate in related professional training for no
less than 15 hours.

2.4 Labor standards

The Group pays great attention to the labor rights
and interests enjoyed by employees, and strictly
abides by the provisions of the Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China. The Group
guarantees that it will not hire persons under the
age of 18 or child labor. It also stipulates other
employment conditions, working hours rules and
holiday systems, so as to protect employees’ legal
and reasonable interest. We will never allow forced
labor.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

In order to ensure that the purchased materials meet
the requirements, the procurement process and the
supplier are managed. The Group established the
“Supplier Management Control Procedure” in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations. This procedure is
applicable to the procurement of materials required for
the production of the Group and the supplier selection,
assessment and control of the raw material required by
the Group. We also establish a supplier database and
regularly review suppliers, thus ensure that suppliers
continue to provide raw materials that meet the quality
requirements of the Group.
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PRODUCT LIABILITY AND PRIVACY

We continuously monitor and control the quality of our
products throughout the product development and
production process, so as to ensure that our products
are of superior quality and that our customers can
install them smoothly. We have been awarded the
IATF16949 Automotive Industry Quality Management
System Certification. Based on this standard, we adopt
a comprehensive set of quality control policies and
procedures that standardize our production processes.

During the product development process, we perform
repeated tests before the mold can be used in the
production phase. During the production process, we
carry out regular inspections and tests to ensure that
the quality of our products is consistent. Once defects
are discovered, we will repair or eliminate the defective
products immediately. In addition, all manufactured
products are tested first and then delivered to customers.

At the same time, the Group also establishes the “Non-
conforming product control procedure” to prevent
unintended use or delivery of non-conforming products.
When the relevant departments receive the product
problem message, they will arrange emergency recovery
in time. The quality management department will organize
to analyze the reason of the recalled products, formulate
measures to prevent the problem from happening again,
and finally dispose of the product properly.

We are committed to protecting the privacy and
confidentiality of the personal data of our employees,
customers, suppliers, business partners and other
identifiable persons. Our employees are required
to handle customer data with care as directed. The
employee may obtain information about the customer
only if there are adequate reasons, and the use of the
customer data is limited to the purposes stated in our
contract only.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group strictly abides by relevant national laws
and regulations, advocates a corporate culture of
integrity and integrity, and re-regulates its own integrity
establishment. Through the new employee entry training
and the “Employee handbook” learning, standardize
employee behavior, establish a good working atmosphere
of honesty and diligence, and prevent intentional fiction,
disclosure of trade secrets, corruption, misappropriation,
encroachment and other acts that harm the interests
of the Group. During the reporting period, there was
no litigation of corruption involving the Group or our
employees.

GIVING BACKTO SOCIETY

As a responsible corporate citizen, we believe that we
can promote the harmonious development of society by
actively fulfilling the responsibility of improving people’s
livelihood. Our management encourages employees to
improve society through community involvement. The
management and employees of the Group are eager to
help and support the local community and their fellow
citizens through their own actions.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its registered office address is Sertus
Chambers, Governors Square, Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay
Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company, and the
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the research
and development, manufacture and sale of automotive interior
decorative components and parts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, investment and financial
activities, including a fair review of the business using financial
key performance indicators and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business as well as environmental
policies and performance, as required by Schedule 5 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong Kong),
is shown in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 17 and in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 38
to 47 of this annual report.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE
COMPANY

Description of possible risks and uncertainties facing the
Company is set out in note 24 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of revenue from the Group’s largest and
five largest customers for the year ended 31 December 2018
represented approximately 42.2% (31 December 2017: 58.1%)
and 89.0% (31 December 2017: 97.7%), respectively, of the
Group’s total revenue from sales operations.

The aggregate amount of purchases from the Group’s largest
and five largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December
2018 represented approximately 9.6% (31 December 2017:
11.1%) and 34.1%, respectively (31 December 2017: 40.5%).
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So far as is known to our Directors, none of our Directors,
their respective close associates or our Shareholders who are
interested in more than 5% of the issued share capital of our
Company has any interests in the five largest customers or the
five largest suppliers of our Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable development
in the long term, continuously create value for its employees
and customers, and foster good relationships with its suppliers.
The Group understands that employees are its valuable assets,
and the realization and enhancement of employees’ values will
facilitate the achievement of the Group’s overall goals. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group provided generous
social security benefits to its employees to motivate them
while heightening their sense of belonging. The Group also
understands the importance of maintaining good relationships
with its suppliers and customers to the overall development of
the Group. The Group places emphasis on supplier selection
and encourages fair and open competition to foster long-term
relationships with quality suppliers on the basis of mutual trust.
To maintain the competitiveness of its brand and products, the
Group abides by the principles of honesty and trustworthiness
and commits itself to consistently provide quality products to
establish a reliable service environment for its customers. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no significant
and material dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/
or customers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 5 of
this annual report.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.6 cents per ordinary Share (the “Proposed
Final Dividend”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Subject to the approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by
the Shareholders at the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 14 June 2019. The Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid on or about 14 August 2019 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 26 June 2019.

There is no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements
in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and is committed to building an
environmentally-friendly corporation that pays close attention
to conserving natural resources. We strive to minimize our
environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, as far as the
Company is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the business and operations of
the Group.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report
and note 18 to the financial statements in this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the event after the reporting period are set out in note
28 to the financial statements in this annual report.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in properties, plants and equipment for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 11 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

The Group’s property interests located in the PRC as at
30 September 2018 have been valued by an independent
property valuer and the amount of such valuation of the
properties is RMB69.7 million. The revaluation surplus has
not been recorded in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group as the Group’s property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss. If the revaluation surplus were recorded in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, addition annual deprecation
and amortisation of approximately RMB0.2 million would be
charged against the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB102.2 million of which RMB10.2
million has been proposed as a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in note 23 to the financial statements in this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management
with a sustainable dividend policy. The Company's dividend
policy aims to allow shareholders to participate in the
Company's profit and for the Company to retain adequate
reserves for future development. When considering the
dividend payment, the Board shall take into account the factors
including but not limited to the Company’s operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and
future development requirements , shareholders’ interests and
other factors that the Board considers relevant.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company’s shares were first listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 15 January 2019 (the “Listing Date”).
During the period from the Listing Date up to the date of this
report, neither our Company, nor its subsidiary have purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the directors of the Company as of the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules at any time up to
the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company,
every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets and profit of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office
or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officer’s
liability coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by the
Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
made any charitable donations.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Bierui

Mr. Zhao Shijie

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Honggiang (appointed on 18 December 2018)
Mr. Zhou Genshu (appointed on 18 December 2018)
Mr. Shin Yick Fabian (appointed on 18 December 2018)

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and
considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18 to 24 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company commencing from 15 January 2019
for an initial term of three years unless terminated by either
party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing to the
other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter with our Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from 15 January 2019 unless
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice to the other party.
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None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING

SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 16.1 and
16.2 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) has been entered
into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 15.2 and
15.3 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2018.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors of the Company
and five highest paid individuals are set out in note 8 and 9 to
the financial statements in this annual report. The emoluments
of the Directors is determined by reference to the relevant
Directors’ experience, responsibility, workload and the time
devoted to our Group.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

None of our Directors and their respective close associates
are interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete with that of our Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Details of corporate governance practice adopted by the
Company are set out in the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the interests or short
positions of each of our Directors and chief executive of our
Company in our Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our
Company and our associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which, were required to be notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions in
which any of them was taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein or which were required to be notified to our Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

(a) Interest in our Company
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(a) RMELFHER

Number of Shares Percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest (Note 1) shareholding

EERE ERME RHEE (MizE1) BREDH

Mr. Hou Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)

(e3itaa fo i - s EE R (f2)

Ms. Chen Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)

PRZ+ foBiE s « RiEwEE R (f2)

Notes: FisE

1. The letter “L” denotes our Directors’ long position (as 1. FHRILIERMEBENZERONTE (B

defined under Part XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued
share capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially
and legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and
Ms. Chen respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr.
Hou and Ms. Chen is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

RESLHBEMEXVER) -

2. EEEBMZIHEME - H&C Group
Holding Limited )& #8221 TAR A5 Bl B &
FHERRZ L E R KA EREE60% 240% o
BIEEF RBAERD] - s RRL %
B AR H&C Group Holding Limited FriH)
RS A RGP EAER o
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(b) Interests in our associated corporations

(b) REBEZENES

Name of Name of associated Number of Percentage of

Director corporation Nature of interest shares (Note 1) shareholding

BEEng LB B EEME MRD B A (M) BEED L

Mr. Hou H&C Group Holding Limited  Beneficial owner; Interest of 100 (L) 100%
spouse (Note 2)

BErE H&C Group Holding Limited ~ Ez#A A : B @ (T 2)

Ms. Chen H&C Group Holding Limited  Beneficial owner; Interest of 100 (L) 100%
spouse (Note 2)

Bt H&C Group Holding Limited ~ Bz #EHB A + Bif@#as (5t 2)

Notes: PisE

1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under 1. FHEILIERZEROOTE (EEREAFRK

Part XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued
share capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially
and legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and
Ms. Chen respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr.
Hou and Ms. Chen is deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none
of the Directors or the chief executive of our Company has
any interests or short positions in our shares, underlying
shares or debentures of our Company and our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions in which any of them was
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, the persons or corporations
who has an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were
as follows:

Directors’ Report

=L=0=

=FBHRE

IERRRRONABAERD P EENVERR
KRR

MRAFHREH - BREBEBHFRABKOIEXVEBE2
K335 BRI AR B EE HAR 2 5 M A E 50
FE336IFAMIFNERLMATCE - TIALIOER
AR BB D AR R ) A RO R SOX B 1R
T

Number of Percentage of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares (Note 1) shareholding
REREH EEME ROBE (M=E1) FRESL
H&C Group Holding Limited Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%

E=AA
Mr. Hou Interest of spouse; interest in a 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
EE controlled corporation (Note 2)

ISR - RIEHEE R (A22)
Ms. Chen Interest of spouse; interest in a 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
PR 2z controlled corporation (Note 2)

IS « RIEHEEER (A22)
Notes: Ffi5E
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under Part 1. FEILIFERZFEOHTE (ERAESRHE

XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued share
capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially and
legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held
by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
the directors were not aware of any other person or corporation
having an interest or short position in shares and underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

TRBIZEXVER) -

2. ERABRMEZLIMEM - H&C GroupHolding

Limited ®) 2 5B 1T A D Bl &S £ KR L
B NAEERC0% K40% - BIEFEAELSEE

ﬂﬂﬁu BEERRZ TR AR H&C Group
Holding Limited FT#5HI4B (R £ B A (7 = # A # e o

B EREESN  RAFHRAE  ESHAMBML
A E A A LA BR AR B IRD SABRER S S
RIEE A N EEMIE XV EBE2 R E35 F/A R A
RNAE B HIRIEE S KB KF] 533615 BETFH
BTSN ERIOAE
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 or the
period following 31 December 2018 up to the date of this annual
report, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding
company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company’s holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors and chief executive, or
their spouse and children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during such period.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the PRC local government authorities
for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC. Particulars of
these retirement plans are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018, which did not constitute
connected transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are set out in note 26 of the financial statements in this annual
report.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company has received the written confirmation from
each of H&C Group Holding Limited, Mr. Hou Jianli, Ms. Chen
Bierui (the “Covenantors”) in respect of the compliance with
the terms of the non-compete undertaking (the “Non-compete
Undertaking”), entered into between the Covenantors and the
Company as set out in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders — Non-Competition Undertakings
From Our Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus. Each
of the Covenantors has confirmed and declared that he/she/
it had strictly complied with the Non-compete Undertaking
without any breach thereof. All the Independent Non-executive
Directors had reviewed the matters relating to the enforcement
of the Non-compete Undertaking and consider that the terms
of the Non-compete Undertaking have been complied with
by each of the Covenantors for the year ended 31 December
2018.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A
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AUDITORS
The Company appointed KPMG as auditors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

KPMG will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
Hou Jianli

Chairman

Xian, the PRC, 26 March 2019
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to
160, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash-flow
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

EREXE
BPERBEBESFMASRANE BB ERE
TEA - RIEZFEATARNEECEARARS
BEEIB &1 & B HF A Ea) B (F— 8P Ve
— SR - RIEEBEFASEMGNEE S
B FRICAT R TR ) RREMEARSES
MR A B RR AN EEERE - RfPELIR
BEE - WEBETHFRENRTATOEMERE
BEME - HAIAE - RAIMESHESNREETRE
MEE R PIRET B RREER -

BgEsEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) HRETTEE®G)
Loss allowance for trade receivables

BEBRWRRBRER

Refer to Notes 15 and 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(g)(i)

and 2(j). 2 R4 5 B IR F M1 157124(a) R H15E2(9)() F2() 89 @ 5HB 5 -
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BEREEE E B A AR

At 31 December 2018, the Group had a significant |Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for
balance of gross trade receivables which amounted | trade receivables included the following:

to RMB78,551,000, representing approximately 23.2% | E15H{E & 3 JE W K TEIZ IR EFHBENETEFE2EU TS
of the Group’s total assets at that date, against which |18 :

loss allowance of RMB457,000 was recorded.
M2018%F12A31H » EEBMWE S EWFIEHEE A A | Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
R¥78,5651,0007T ' (EESEBERZALEEIREEEBLD design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
23.2% + MixBEEEE AR 457,0007T ° management’s key internal controls relating to credit
control, debt collection and estimate of credit loss
The Group’s trade receivables mainly arose from heavy allowances;

truck and passenger vehicle manufacturers. B RAHMEEREREEES - BB ERNEEREE
ERENESRRFEFZREER RERRAERE BT AN AR NI EIERRET - B lEFERIL
7g o

e assessing whether items were correctly categorised
Management measures loss allowance at an in the trade receivables ageing report by comparing a
amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss for sample of individual items with the underlying goods
trade receivables which is based on ageing of the delivery notes, sales invoices and other relevant

receivables and expected loss rate. underlying documentation; and
EIRERIEE 5 EUCIE ) AR B AN 78 HA S 18 R AR AT A BAKEEERNEAEAEMRIMNE - HEREMA
FHNRBEEBHRRSHEASHEERE - AR SEEITHR - fHAIE R R EEE 5 EUERRIE

FREC ISP IEED 1R, M
We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables
as a key audit matter because determining the level of |e assessing the reasonableness of management’s
loss allowance is inherently subjective which requires loss allowance estimates for trade receivables by
significant management judgement. examining the information used by management
BFIKE S ERFAEEEGHE T RERETEE to form such judgements, including testing the
AETHBEFRKEAE LRXEMN  FEFELEAN accuracy of the historical default data and evaluating
EIR G o whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on latest financial information of major
customers, current economic conditions and forward-
looking information.
RAREERERUEKILLBEHENER - fHEERE
HEZHRYGIAFIBERRTNSIEN - 8FAFES
BAOBHOERL  WREBFEEFPONSFTUBEMT
HREEEAXREEEE AL - REFINLHER I
ATBEME AR o

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A



Independent Auditor’s Report
ERVA L S (T FES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Timing of revenue recognition

FRESTSEEE®)

LN A
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(q).
BEJR S ISR Z M T4 RMT7F2(q) IS ETEE
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
HRETEE ErBHEMAIARR

Revenue from sales of automotive interior and exterior | Our audit procedures to assess the timing of recognition
decorative products is recognised when products are | of revenue included the following:

delivered at the customers’ premises, the customers | E2rHERARER S HARMNE 2 F BEN TEIE

take possession of and accept the products, which is
taken to be the point in time when the Group transfers
control over the products to the customers.
BEMNREF ISR - TR A REWNERR - BI%
BREEEERBYERNEHREETZEPHE @
RifEI R - SHE TR RN ER WA T HERBAR

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of management’s key internal controls in relation to
revenue recognition;

AR N AT B IR B B AR B B RO R B A R ERIE RV R
it B EFEAMIL

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as akey |e inspecting key customer contracts to identify terms

audit matter because revenue is a key performance
indicator of the Group which increases the risk that the
timing of revenue recognition may be manipulated to
meet financial expectations or targets.

BB AERKH SEREASTH  ARKRARE

and conditions relating to goods acceptance and
assessing the Group’s revenue recognition policies
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

MEEBAREFNAL - BRI EE YR A B ER

KAt - WRRIRIT @R R MR EFH A ERE A UA

SE-EMNBRKRIEEE  EINRA T RERIRIENER T

BT TASAS B AR -

e comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the financial
year end date with underlying documentation, which
included goods acceptance notes, to assess whether
the revenue had been recognised in accordance with
the terms of the sales contracts and in the appropriate
financial periods;

RBEAEE KRRV RFEAE BRIERENETE
WARGEERE(BREEMEWE) - UFHHRARS
ERBHE S IR & E I BUAM R

e inspecting underlying documentation for manual
journal entries relating to revenue which were recorded
during the year and which met other specific risk-
based criteria; and
T B R EF R SR AS AR B X 15 & Bt 45 TE R B A B
TestoseBmEst &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Timing of revenue recognition

D ONEAE

FRESTSEE®)

DT S B IR AN T4 RMTE2(q) B E a1 B
The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(q).

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FETBRMAEER

e obtaining external confirmation of, on a sample basis,
transaction amounts for the year and debtor balances
as at the financial year end directly with customers.
BRBREAEE  BERATFERFEXZFCRNEBEY
BUFERE 5 MW IR R ERR 78 B o

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FORTHE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

ESpRaMBRRAENEL
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT BB EBE RN BERRAENET®)

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise  HEARIEEBEENMETETHIBRET - RIFER
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism T EHE ¥l - (R¥F T X EEREE - HFIN -

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement e

of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevantto e

the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used e

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of e

the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BB ET RN BREAENEE S
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEARBIREAMBENETERAEABBR

independent auditor’s report is Wan Chi Yau, Charles. 1o

KPMG EEHSTREX
Certified Public Accountants RS AT

8th Floor, Prince’s Building BERIR

10 Chater Road EITB109%

Central, Hong Kong KFARESE

26 March 2019 201943 H26H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

& O £
gﬂ'\ o1t ‘ﬁﬁ%(
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

(Expressed in Reminbi (“RMB”)) (LA #5177 )

2018 2017

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Btat AR®T T AREEFTT

(Note)

(B 5E)

Revenue WA 4 263,820 241,659

Cost of sales HENAR (173,915) (158,107)

Gross profit EF 4(b) 89,905 83,552

Other (loss)/income HingE, (WA) 5 (596) 1,174

Selling expenses HEER (7,278) (4,791)

Administrative expenses TR (41,598) (31,3086)

Profit from operations KRR 40,433 48,629

Finance costs SR I 6(a) (7,577) (4,809)

Profit before taxation MREBL AR R 6 32,856 43,820

Income tax Frig st 7(a) (4,840) (8,765)

Profit attributable to equity ARIERBRRELFER
shareholders of the Company for A

the year 28,016 35,055
Earnings per share SREF 10

Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EAREEARES) 1.87 2.34

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under & : ZA&EER2018F 1 A1H & FERA BB @S %

the transition method chosen,comparative information is not RIZEOSK - IRIEFTIZIZRME S X « BB RARLE
restated. See Note 2(c). &7 - RHFE2(c) °

The notes on pages 77 to 160 form part of these financial F772 1608 7 M@ A KRz —2 5  fE
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders i F7ZRRQ BI#E 2R AR R FE(L F RS F 2 IR B S5 1BH
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out ~ A HizF23(c) ©

in Note 23(c).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Y =VI-E Y2 >z
relEnkHh2HINGE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREBFIT
(Note)
(BT
Profit for the year F A 28,016 35,055
Other comprehensive income for the year FAHMEZEBA
(after tax): (HIKRFHIER) :
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to AlgefEie EEFHEEIE
profit or loss: w=EIEE ¢
— Exchange differences on translation into — BREBTEBZ
presentation currency of the Group HErEN =5 664 1,257
Total comprehensive income attributable to ARERRREEER
equity shareholders of the Company for the EHARA
year 28,680 36,312

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under
the transition method chosen, comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 77 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.

E5 - RHiFE2(c) -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M IINRE

At 31 December 2018 72018412 831H
Expressed in RMB (XA R EZR)

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Btat ARMT T AREEFTT
(Note)
(B 5E)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BE KR 11 114,501 82,695
Lease prepayments HEFERIE 12 9,486 9,692
Prepayments for acquisitions of BEME - JF%E%& U=
property, plant and equipment SELNEN! 16(a) 9,322 14,352
Deferred tax assets }Eﬁ%ﬂlﬁﬁé 21(b) 758 677
134,067 107,416
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 14 27,252 29,372
Trade and bills receivables 2 S e IE R EWRE 15 132,965 128,333
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE e Bt e W R IE 16(b) 11,324 8,134
Cash at bank and on hand WITRFERS 17 33,385 38,665
204,926 204,504
Current liabilities REEE
Bank and other loans RITREAMER 18 37,449 78,088
Trade and bills payables BB EMNFBRENEE 19 136,867 120,861
Accrued expenses and other payables — JE&T5I Sz K E fth g~ ZU0E 20 27,576 23,620
Amounts due to the controlling FETHRRAR AR B SRIE
shareholders 1,405 31,564
Current taxation BNEARE IE 21(a) 2,318 1,406
205,615 255,539
Net current liabilities REAEFE (689) (51,035)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 133,378 56,381

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under
the transition method chosen, comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 77 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.

&5 - RHtEE2(c)

FT7TE1608 2 M T BA A ISR —

ANNUAL REPORT % 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

tRe M IR E

At 31 December 2018 720184 12831H
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7)

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥T T AREFIT
(Note)
(P )
Non-current liabilities ERBARE

Bank and other loans RITREAME K 18 15,359 15,000
Deferred income FRIEU A 22 2,572 2,797
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIEAE 21(b) — 2,000
17,931 19,797
NET ASSETS EEZE 115,447 36,584

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E 23
Share capital &N 13,216 —
Reserves s 102,231 36,584
TOTAL EQUITY FERREE 115,447 36,584

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under
the transition method chosen, comparative information is not
restated. See Note 2(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
26 March 2019.

Hou Jianli
RER
Chairman

£

The notes on pages 77 to 160 form part of these financial
statements.

72  CHINATIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD Bl KIS A1 AR A7)

i AEER2018F1 /18 5 EABEM RS

R 95 -

RIRFTEZR B

5 - RHiFE2(c) -
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Zhao Shijie
iR ugcd

Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HOEREME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E
Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FRTRRRREG
Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium feserve feserve Teserve profits Total
o RirkE Bt iy EREH (R it

RMBOO RUB OO RIBOO RUBOD RIBO0D RMBOOOD RMBOO
MRETL ARETR ARETR NRETT NEETT NEETT NRETTL
MNoe23p)  (Noe23(d)))  (Note23(0)il)  (Noted3(c)fil)  (Note 23(d))
() (Rron)) (ks (REos)i)  (HEs(d)

Balance at 31 December 2017 (Note) NITEIRR3NA(HE) - - (17,500 11,108 1257 a9 36,584
Impact on nl application of FRS O Note & KRB REEE|Z0%

2l (i) 228 - - - - - (661) (661)
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 HOI8E1 A1 BN ERES - - (17,500 11,108 1257 41,058 35923
Changes in equity forthe yearended 31~ EZ2018F12331 AL EE

December 2018: BE%9:

Proft for the year i - - - - - 2016 2016
Other comprefensive income for he year — FREKZELA - - - - 64 - fi4
Odoompeershe el eyesr | EASREMA o T DT B AW
Issuance of shares (Note 23(o)i) R IR0 - 64648 - - - - 64648
Capitalisation issue (Note 23(o) i) BB (MR0) ) 13216 (13.216) - - - - -
Dividends declared n respect of te previous ~ S AEE SRR

year (Note 23(c) (F23(0)) - - - - - (13.804) (13.804)
Appropriaton to reserves AEERR - - - 3,124 - (3.124) -

13216 51432 - 3124 - (16.926) 50,844
Balance at 31 December 2018 20185125318 13216 51432 (17,500 1423 1921 2,146 115447

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under  3F : ZAREER20184 1710 & K E P BB B iR 5%
the transition method chosen, comparative information is not RIZEOSK - IRIBFTIBRZRMRE S X « LEERKRL

restated. See Note 2(c).

&5 - RHIFE2(c) -

The notes on pages 77 to 160 form part of these financial 7721608 2 Mk RN FEHEKR N — 2D

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FOEREME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

Attrbutable to equity shareholders of the Company

RATERRRER
Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium fesere feserve feserve profits Total
o RiriaE B EERE EliGE &R it
RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB100 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBO00
NREFT NREFT NRETT NRETT NRETT NRETT NREFT
(Note23(0)) ~ (Note 23(cl)(i)) ~ (Note 23(c)fi)) (Note23(d)ii))  (Note 23(d)(v))
() (B3 (ks (REos)i)  (FEsd))
Balance at 1 January 2017 RWOITEI AR - - 100000 121 - 05,49 172112
Changes in equity forthe yearended 31~ EZ2017E12331 AILER 2
December 2017; i E
Proft for he year EpEi - - - - - 3,055 3,05
Other compreensive income for heyear — FRERZENA - - - - 1257 - 157
Tdompereermetotees RSN\ T T T LE T LN L
Reducton of capial nasubsidiaryof e AR E—~EHBAMER
Group (Note 23(a)i) (BtsE23(a)i) - - (50,000) - - - (50,000)
Effect on equity arising fiom the completion of  $EEEETANEL 2B 7
aqroup reorganisafon (Note 23(c)i) F&(k3(d)i) - - (67500) - - - (67500)
Distioutions (Note 23(c)() SR - - - - - (35,000) (55,000)
Issuance of shares (Note 23(0)(i) R (HE23(0)i) - - - - - - -
Appropriaton fo reserves AzHE - - - 3831 - (3831) -
T TR0 U cagg) (123
Balance at 31 December 2017 H017E12831 A - - (17,500) 11,108 1267 479 36,584
The notes on pages 77 to 160 form part of these financial  $£77E 1608 7 M TR KRB Mz A) — 265 ©

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

meIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E
Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz ARET T ARBTIT
(Note)
(B 5E)

Operating activities RETEE
Profit before taxation BRI A 32,856 43,820
Adjustments for: FATSEEDLHE
Depreciation and amortisation Hree B 6(c) 12,804 8,905
Net gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BB RE

plant and equipment Wzt F 58 5 = (322)
Finance costs B TR AR 6(a) 7,577 4,809
Interest income IS ON 5 (239) (148)
Amortisation of deferred income R 2 5 22 (225) (108)
Changes in working capital: =¥ Eﬁ% g
Decrease/(increase) in inventories (b, (1) 2,120 (10,102)
Increase in trade and bills receivables %%FEH& KIA M EE R

iR (5,410) (66,140)

Increase in prepayments and other TE 5RIE R B Ath B GR IR

receivables 0 (3,190) (912)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank 2R &HIRITEZR (L),

deposits B (9,030) 1,030
Increase in trade and bills payables SR FIE R ENRE

Zmn 16,006 52,741

Increase in accrued expenses and FERTRA S R B b FE FRIB

other payables b2yl 4,951 5,780
Cash generated from operations RERBRE 58,220 39,353
Income tax paid BREREH 21(a) (5,892) (8,139)
Net cash generated from operating RETHMBRSTFE

activities 52,328 31,214

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under ~ 7f :

the transition method chosen, comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 77 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.

NEEMK2018F 1 A1H &N IER BB @RE%E
BIZEO5E - IRIFATERIBRAE 7% « LEEERRLE

E]l

o RHiEE2(c) -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mEIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E

Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bfat AR¥T ARET T
(Note)
(BT
Investing activities RETEE
Payments for purchase of property, BEWE  BELEHEAL
plant and equipment and land use T AR MR
right (34,054) (18,445)
Governments grants received EWBUSEED — 2,000
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BEMEE A
plant and equipment 185038 — 401
Interest received EUFE 239 148
Net cash used in investing activities REFEFTARSHE (33,815) (15,896)
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from bank and other loans RITREME RS A 17(b) 130,000 132,588
Repayment of bank and other loans EEBITREMER 17(b) (170,280) (88,000)
Proceeds from issuance of shares IR0 BEATETS A 23(b)(ii) 64,648 —
Payments for acquisition of equity
interest of Xian Tianrui UGB TR & R IG AR AE 7 K 17(b) (68,025) —
Net decrease/(increase) in the amounts ~ FEUIZE IR IR R Z 18R L~
due from the controlling shareholders (g 0n) 558 17(b) 30,591 (28,702)
Dividend paid BERERE 17(b) (12,180) —
Interest paid ERFE 17(b) (7,577) (4,809)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEEEAE(FTA)
financing activities REFE (32,823) 11,077
Net (decrease)/increase incashand BHRERREZEYHM
cash equivalents OR2 )8 (14,310) 26,395
Cash and cash equivalents at the FY/HOReRAES
beginning of the year ZEY 17(a) 27,695 1,300
Cash and cash equivalents attheend &£X HRREFKRE
of the year @Y 17(a) 13,385 07,695

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under ~ #F :
the transition method chosen, comparative information is not

restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 77 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.

E]l
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2017 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time. The shares of the Company were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15 January 2019. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
automotive interior and exterior decorative components
and parts.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

ARER

B RE B N AR AR ([ AAR DR
201754 427 BIBIBETEHEET ~ Fnak A
Hh e S HE QA RE (19616 %
Bl= - SaRE RIS T AS RS FMKLA
ERRBRRTF  ARRRMHHR2019F1 A
15HEBBHMARZEABRAE ([HAT])
TR ET - AARREMB AR (B
EEDEFERBAENINEMTIHFRIER
SHE ©

EpN -

(a) BHEEH
I 55 B 75 SR R AR I P R R B 7 R
HER([EEMFEREEL RS
ZEBeERR g ElEES ([E
e EREEE ) BB ERE
BB REER - B e R R
([EREFTER D kR EARESAF
EAIMERRT - WEMBRERINFE
B P S EmARR (T ERAD &
HREEGEX - AEEMRANERE
TR T X -

RERERE RGO RME TR X
RIEFTRIR M 5l s 2R - ZFEAR
AEBHNA S EIEERE RS A IR
B o BREAZERNR] MEETH
RIS ERIPT S AR BN A G
Wi KBt e st M A SRR E
BRI EPHERERARER - BRER
FHBTEE2(C) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Bl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 comprise the Group.

Prior to the incorporation of the Company, the
principal business of the Group has been operated
under Xian Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., Ltd.
(“Xian Tianrui”) which was controlled by Mr Hou
Jianli and Ms Chen Bierui. To rationalise the
corporate structure in preparation of the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange,
the Group underwent a reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”). As part of the Reorganisation,
Tianrui International Holdings Limited (“Tianrui
International”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired the entire equity interests of Xian
Tianrui at a total consideration of RMB67,500,000.
Immediately following the acquisition, Xian Tianrui
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Upon completion of the Reorganisation
on 14 November 2017, the Company became the
holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group. The Reorganisation only involved
inserting of the Company, Ryford Holding Limited
(“Ryford”) and Tianrui International, which are newly
formed entities with no substantive operations, as
holding companies of Xian Tianrui and there was
no change in the business and operation of Xian
Tianrui. Accordingly, the Reorganisation has been
accounted for using a principle similar to that for a
reverse acquisition, with Xian Tianrui treated as the
acquirer for accounting purposes. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been prepared and presented
as a continuation of the financial statements of Xian
Tianrui with the assets and liabilities of Xian Tianrui
recognised and measured at their historical carrying
amounts prior to the Reorganisation.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

2

EpN--E e {C)

(b)

BRI EE
HZE2018F 12 A1 B ILFEMLEAE
BHRERBIEAELEENERR -

RAANGEMAZA > AEBHEE
¥ —ERATARAIBERNMTERR
AEN([ARTRIGEE  ZREHE
BREERRBIHAZTIZS - BEE
RRARRH R EmmEIEA A
g ANEE@ETEA(TER]) - E
BEHN D ARRNZEWES
RARIGEHEBEIZERER AR ([ RIHH
AR E ARK67,500,0007T 48
BATRENEIRE - BEWES
BE  AEREABARRAR—REE
2EWB AR - EHAMN2017F11714
A% © ANQ R A AN E B RIS
TRBIMIER AR - BAHEES R INA
EEEEFOFTRLEE (AT
RyfordHoldingLimited([ Ryford |) &%
MBI ) EARLT REEMIER AR - M
PR RInREH RS E W EBE) o
It BEHREFEREUR R AR RE]
ABR - MAZKIGAEE: B MR
BUEETT o B ZE 20184 K 2017512 A
TR FEMNRATBRRIZERA
BRIV IERRERFELEY  RE
R ML RIEHWEERBEIREBE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

()

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and
amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

. IFRS 9, Financial instruments

° IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

. IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and

advance consideration

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

2 EAEHHBE®

(b)

()

MBREOEREE(E)

ZIRBPR I RS R R B B IR R
SREREBAELAE - AEHFIRR -
Mz FEHE - At MRREFERRDN
ERMEE - BfF - WARHAXHER
TH - REAA ERRERLENBE
BRI EABBATHERASBAENSE
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R E AR EE MR ENR
EEIFHHIE 2% - BRERKE R
R FEfhe

ZEMF REERREHETAERN -
&SRB RTEEHFHRERT R HIME
EETE  AABEITNZRAE
R W EHEET S RTH IR KRS
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RIREAEATER

B IR B e A BB B A S E R R R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

In preparation of the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange, the Group has
early adopted IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers, on a fully retrospective basis, and
applied IFRS 15 consistently for the year ended 31
December 2017. The adoption of IFRS 15 does not
have any material impact on the amount and timing
of how the Group recognised revenue. The Group
has not applied any new standards or interpretations
that are not yet effective for the current accounting
period, except for the amendments to IFRS 9,
Prepayment features with negative compensation,
which have been adopted at the same time as IFRS
9.

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to IFRS 9,
Prepayment features with negative
compensation
IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring
financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively
to items that existed at 1 January 2018 in
accordance with the transition requirements.
The Group has recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, comparative information continues
to be reported under IAS 39.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments,

including the amendments to IFRS 9,
Prepayment features with negative
compensation (Continued)
The following table summarises the impact of
transition to IFRS 9 on retained earnings and
the related tax impact at 1 January 2018.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

2 EAEHHBE®
(c) EFtEXRSH(H)

(i)

EIBR B A5 3R 2 HE B 55955, -
SHITE GEEEEHREE
BB (165T4)  EEE#HE
HIIBATB 15 # (48)

TR ) B PR B A RS 2RI
SR IBE Y2018F 1 A1HRE &
FIM S 2 AR 2 -

RMB’000
AREEFTT

Retained earnings REEF
Recognition of additional expected credit losses 7t 5 & W FRIBHER ZE SN FEER

on trade receivables (Note 24(a)) =B 518 (K15E24(a)) 778
Related tax (Note 21(b)) HRRATIA (FFE21(D)) (117)
Net decrease in retained earnings at 1 January 201841 81 B{RE & T

2018 FER 661

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and
the transaction approach are set out below:

a.  Classification of financial assets and

financial liabilities

IFRS 9 categorises financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) and at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”). These supersede
IAS 39’s categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVPL.
The classification of financial assets
under IFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments,

including the amendments to IFRS 9,
Prepayment features with negative
compensation (Continued)

(c)

()

a.

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (Continued)

For an explanation of how the Group
classifies and measures financial assets
and recognises related gains and losses
under IFRS 9, see respective accounting
policy notes in Notes 2(g)(i), 2(i), 2(j) and
2(k).

The measurement categories for all
financial assets and financial liabilities
remain the same. The carrying amounts
for all financial liabilities at 1 January
2018 have not been impacted by the
initial application of IFRS 9.

Credit losses

IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in IAS 39 with the “expected credit
loss” (“ECL”) model. The ECL model
requires an ongoing measurement of
credit risk associated with a financial
asset and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the “incurred loss”
accounting model in IAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL
model to financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, and trade and other
receivables).

For further details on the Group’s
accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see Note 2(g)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EXEiEHE®)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) ETFBR2E(E)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments, (i)
including the amendments to IFRS 9,
Prepayment features with negative
compensation (Continued)
b.  Credit losses (Continued)
The following table reconciles the
closing loss allowance determined in
accordance with IAS 39 at 31 December
2017 with the opening loss allowance
determined in accordance with IFRS 9 at

EIBR B A5 3R 2 HE B 55955, -
SHITE GEEEEHREE
BB (165T4)  EEE#HE
HIIBATB 15 # (48)

b.  (ZEEEE)
TREHH2017F12 A31
HiIRIEBIBR &5 £ RIS 39
SR HE SRR F R B 18 A
MR201841 A1 HIRIFEEE
B 5 $R 5 2 BI BB O5R iR Y

1 January 2018. FHEEEERHER o
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Loss allowance at 31 December 2017  RiIEEFE &1 ER| 5395520174
under 1AS 39 12 A31 BiER R S8 21 —
Additional credit loss recognised at BE P EWFIEN2018F1 10
1 January 2018 on trade receivables REFEIM=EEIE 778

RIFEFR P3RS R E RN

Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 2018%1H1H

under IFRS 9 R E 1% 778

C. Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting
from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been
applied retrospectively, except as
described below:

— Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised
in retained earnings at 1 January
2018. Accordingly, the information
presented for 2017 continues to be
reported under IAS 39 and thus
may not be comparable with the
current period.
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PR % AR BB B 75 3R 45 2E )
BRI BN GHBURE
ERPER - T XA
HBRON

— EBFRLEHEmER
WEET o FENE
R BmEERE
WO BMNEREER
H{E 2 ZFER2018
F1R1HERE AT
AER - Bt - B2
K201 7 EREE
KgEBRBEEE 25
AERIFE395R 2R
I 2R 04 A] B2 7K BR R Y
BRHEE o

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2018 83
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E

Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to IFRS 9,
Prepayment features with negative
compensation (Continued)
C. Transition (Continued)
—  The assessment on the determination
of the business model within which
a financial asset is held has been
made on the basis of the facts
and circumstances that existed at
1 January 2018 (the date of initial
application of IFRS 9 by the Group).

— I, at the date of initial application,
the assessment of whether there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition
would have involved undue cost
or effort, a lifetime ECL has been
recognised for that financial
instrument.

(ii) IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions

and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on
determining “the date of the transaction” for
the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising
from a transaction in which an entity receives
or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(ii) IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration (Continued)

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition
of the non-monetary asset or liability arising
from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the date of the transaction
for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way. The adoption of IFRIC
22 does not have any material impact on the
financial position and the financial result of the
Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
in the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative equity interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interests
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interests retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(g)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(g)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(t)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual values, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

2 EAEHHBE®

(e)

Plant and buildings WE REF
Machinery and equipment S s
Moulds HA

Motor vehicles and other equipment YUER R EL A RS

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually. No depreciation is
provided in respect of construction in process until
it is completed and ready for its intended use.
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Payments made on the acquisition of land
held under an operating lease are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(g)(ii)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E
Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EXEiEHE®)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (9) FEBEREERE
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments () KELZBITARSHEENEE
and contract assets BB
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (A) B20184 14 1HEEEHFH)
BE
The Group recognises a loss allowance REBERIREHK AT E
for ECL on financial assets measured NERMEERAKNEE (R

at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, and trade and other
receivables) and contract assets.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for trade
and other receivables and contract
assets are discounted using the
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof, where the effect of discounting
is material.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EBEXEiEE®)

90

undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs
when the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held).
The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E

Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in
the market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EBEXEiEE®)
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(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (9) GEBEREEREGE)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments () REZBIARSHWEEWEE

and contract assets (Continued) Ei#E ()

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (A) EB20184 14 1HEEEHH)
(Continued) B ()
Basis of calculation of interest income FEWA BT EHE
Interest income recognised in RIE M 5E2(q)(ii) FERR A F)
accordance with Note 2(q)(ii) is BWATTEREREERN

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in

REAEE HES®mE
EHREERER KR -
FUEBERT - FERAE

which case interest income is calculated RS BE BE RS AN (BD
based on the amortised cost (i.e. IR AEREIBER) T
the gross carrying amount less loss s

allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as
a default or delinquency in
payments;

— it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

— significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment

REmEBH - NEEF
HEREESSHLREE
HE - EREEHZTHE
BEMIARAKREREE
RAMEEN —HE LA
B AeREES W
ERHBREERE -

TREELREEREDN
BRERETIIBREN

— EBEBALREAMB
&

— BY wmiERgm
HARIAR

— fERAFREEERE
HETHMMBE
ERCIY

— WH - KEIEFIR

SHEEEAS o

that have an adverse effect on the B A& &
debtor. EI



Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E
Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

(A)

(B)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or
loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred
loss” model was used to measure
impairment losses on financial assets
not classified as at FVPL (e.g. trade and
other receivables). Under the “incurred
loss” model, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was
objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment
included:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in payments;
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EBEXEiEE®)

96

— significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.

If any such evidence existed, an
impairment loss for trade and other
receivables and other financial assets

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (9) GEBEREEREGE)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments () REZBIARSHWEEWEE
and contract assets (Continued) Ei#E ()
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (B) R201841H1H.2FiEH
(Continued) HIB R (1)
— it becoming probable that the — BB ARG R E A
debtor will enter bankruptcy or EHMMBER
other financial reorganisation; and 53

— 5 EESOEHIR
BHBEEARE L B
&% ANEK AT &

@,

o F R EEE - &

BHAATIENE P RE

R RER LM S A

carried at amortised cost is measured ENREBEZEENE
as the difference between the asset's HEREZEREERTN

carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E
Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

When the recovery of trade and other
receivables or other financial assets
carried at amortised cost was considered
doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group
was satisfied that recovery was remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable
was written off against the gross
carrying amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance
account were reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly were recognised in profit or
loss.

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EAEFEE®)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (9) GEBEREEREGE)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments () RELBIARSHWEENWEE
and contract assets (Continued) S ()
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (B) R20184F1H1H.2FiEH
(Continued) HIB R (1)
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EASEE®)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (9) GEBEREEREGE)
(i)  Impairment of other non-current assets (i) Bk nEEERE

REHEHRG SR AR
BT - ABHFHEHAUATE
EEBANRBRABEELRE
HAFERHOBEBETBFE
SHRIBEE R

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

98

property, plant and equipment;

prepayments for acquisitions of property,
plant and equipment;

prepaid interests in leasehold land
classified as being held under an
operating lease; and

investment in a subsidiary in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Calculation of recoverable amount AT o] BB AT E
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories and other contract costs

(h)

()

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, in the
process of production for such sale or in the
form of materials or suppliers to be consumed
in the production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
or the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventories (see
Note 2(h)(i)).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)
(i)

Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
capitalised when incurred if the costs relate to
revenue which will be recognised in a future
reporting period and the costs are expected
to be recovered. Other costs of obtaining a
contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract
or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract; generate or enhance resources that
will be used to provide goods or services in
the future; and are expected to be recovered.
Costs that relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract may include direct labour,
direct materials, allocations of costs, costs that
are explicitly chargeable to the customer and
other costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract. Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventories are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying
amount of the contract cost asset exceeds the
net of (i) remaining amount of consideration
that the Group expects to receive in exchange
for the goods or services to which the asset
relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly to
providing those goods or services that have
not yet been recognised as expenses.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(M)

Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(ii)  Other contract costs (Continued)
Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in Note 2(q).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(q)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 2(g)(i) and are reclassified
to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see Note 2(j)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see Note 2(q)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see Note 2(j)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented
on a net basis.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

(k)

U}

(m)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see Note 2(i)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see Note 2(g)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(g)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost, using an effective
interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see Note 2(t)).

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(ii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)
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CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided that they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

2
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods in the ordinary

course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and

is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sale of automotive interior and exterior

decorative components and parts

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises, the
customers take possession of and accept
the products, which is taken to be the point
in time when the Group transfers control over
the products to the customers. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering
other goods, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of
the total transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods promised
under the contract on a relative stand-alone

selling price basis.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the

asset (see Note 2(g)(i)).

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as other income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are recognised as deferred income and
consequently recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB, the Group’s reporting currency, at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)
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CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

®

Research and development expenditures
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs (see Note 2(t)), where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(g)(ii)). Other development expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the year in which it
is incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

2

EpN--E e {C)

(s)

®

i

MIEEB N ELFEANRER R
X o WEEMEA T FAERM EREELE
AT - URAKEATRERMERRT
pFE - AIFBABNAXE TUER
1t - ENMENRAXZ BRERMBRA - B
BRETRA - EELOINERERRE
ERA(HEA - RIEE2() - BARME
B R B PR AN IR A ARG 5 R AT SR AR E
ERR IR (RHTEE2(g)(0) - EALF
BRAXINELFEARR R o

BERA

B BESAEREREEA AT
BARTERGIHENEEE K BB
fEERA - TFTENMAER/ZEERE
B —E8 D o EthtE ERA RN E L HME
FPARIX -

BRABEREERE—FDMERK
A EEEELMRX  BERAELM
FBEERARTEREIIHEMBFHLE
BLIBETHREMAGERL - BERE
REERARERGIIHEMBFHR
KB LM T LTkl - fEERK
AESERHIFLEMME -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E
Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)
(a)

Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(i

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(i

(iv)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vi) a person identified in (a) (i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity);

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products,
the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
Note 24 contains information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(a) Impairment losses for long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a non-current asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of non-current
assets as described in Note 2(g)(ii). These assets
are tested for impairment whenever the events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and the value in use. In
determining the value in use, expected future cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to the level of revenue and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that
is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of
the level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the recoverable amount of the assets
and could result in additional impairment charge or
reversal of impairment in future years.

3
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CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

()

Credit loss allowance for trade receivables

Loss allowance for trade receivables is based
on assumptions about the expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
expected credit loss estimation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions
and estimates could materially affect the result of
the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to profit or loss.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, if any. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values, if any, of
the property, plant and equipment regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense
to be recorded during any reporting period. The
determination of the useful lives and residual
values, if any, are based on historical experience
with similar assets after taking into account the
anticipated changes on how such assets are to be
deployed in the future. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARZDEREE
(a) Revenue (a) WA
The Group is principally engaged in the REBFERETHRINEMSFHFR
manufacture and sale of automotive interior and EREE c BEAEBEFEEBHE—
exterior decorative components and parts. Further B M E4(0) R -

details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed in Note 4(b).

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RIZERHEPAENZKBAE S
customers by major products is as follows: N
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Revenue from contracts with R 2RI 515
customers within the scope of REERNHEEFEITS
IFRS 15 HZBA
Disaggregated by major products: BXEEMDE
— Sales of heavy trucks’ decorative — HEEA RBEEM
components and parts B 238,896 230,061
— Sales of passenger vehicles’ — HERAEEM
decorative components and parts T 24,924 11,598
263,820 241,659
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with W ARSI mig D E R
customers by the timing of revenue recognition and BEITAHZIASBIRKEEA(b) () &
by geographic markets is disclosed in Notes 4(b)(i) A(b)(iii) B FE o
and 4(b)(iii) respectively.
The Group’s customers with which transactions NEFBE Y X SBBAEFRKRA10%
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue are set HEEHIMT
out below:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Customer A ZEA 111,347 76,258
Customer B ZFB 98,556 140,368
Details of concentration of credit risk rising from the EPEREERRBFBDENWE
Group’s customers are set out in Note 24(a). 24(a) °
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by products.
In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following two
reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

(b)

()

Heavy trucks’ decorative components and
parts: this segment includes primarily the
research, development, manufacture and sale
of decorative components and parts to be
installed in heavy trucks.

Passenger vehicles’ decorative components
and parts: this segment includes primarily the
research, development, manufacture and sale
of decorative components and parts to be
installed in passenger vehicles.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
and revenue generated by those segments
and direct expenses incurred by those
segments. The measure and revenue used
for reporting segment result is gross profit.
No inter-segment sales have occurred for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017. Assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.
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E’E?ﬁt%ﬁ’\iﬁ”‘lzﬁm KH T
B ROAT S - AEMIHE

— FAEEHTHE  ZOREE
BRLZERRABEHEH TR
BRI - EERHE ©

(i) PE¥&E BERAE
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RER AEESSTRERE
BUATEEEERZAEROEL
FEIG 54

WARAT2BZESBELEN
ﬁé%&;ﬁzﬁ%a EEMEER
¥ D ERMOIL - 2WMH
A LA%ﬂ‘Jr o 20184
K2017F12A31BILFE - Wik
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

4 WARDIHRE @)
(b) DEWHE (&)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DEBEE BERERE(E)
(Continued)
The Group’s other operating expenses, REBMEMEERT (IMEA
including other loss/income, selling and (B518), /WA -~ HERT 1T
administration expenses and finance costs, AR BERAAR)AREERE
and assets and liabilities are not measured BT AERIAES - Bt - &
under individual segments. Accordingly, mEAHEIHEERBENE
neither information on segment assets and B MR EERERAX - FE
liabilities nor information concerning capital WARFBHAZMER - 5TE
expenditure, interest income and interest E I
expenses is presented.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts R20184 K2017412A31H It
with customers by the timing of revenue FE  RERABEIRBREZTSE
recognition, as well as information AlAaR 2 WA R D BLE IR EET
regarding the Group’s reportable segments o HFEEMRAAEEZSITH
as provided to the Group’s most senior ERERH I EEEREET2®
executive management for the purposes AEERFHIAT -
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 is set out below.
2018
Heavy  Passenger
trucks’ vehicles’
decorative  decorative
components components
and parts and parts Total
ER+H FRESE
SEET I EE IR @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TRT ARETR
Revenue recognised at a point in T B R BRERR R
time from external customers BIMNBEEZHA 238,896 24,924 263,820
Reportable segment gross profit ] 2HH BEF 81,860 8,045 89,905
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4 WARDZT®HE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DETHEE)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DEp¥E BEREE(E)
(Continued)
2017

Heavy Passenger

trucks’ vehicles’

decorative decorative

components  components
and parts and parts Total

BRRE FRE
ST T st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR

Revenue recognised at a point in time EE-HRHSERRE

from external customers SRR Z M 230,061 11,598 241,659
Reportable segment gross profit A2RHHEF 80,196 3,356 83,552
(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (i) TE2HH B4
or loss
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Total reportable segment gross profit 7] £ 5 &8 F K 4258 89,905 83,552
Other (loss)/income Hib (B18), WA (596) 1,174
Selling expenses HERX (7,278) (4,791)
Administrative expenses TR (41,598) (31,3086)
Finance costs BATE R (7,577) (4,809)
Consolidated profit before taxation ARG T 32,856 43,820
(iii) Geographic information (i) I E R

The Group’s revenue is substantially AEEHBAEZRENPEH
generated from the sales of automotive interior ERBANIDPEMHZT M o A&
and exterior decorative components and parts B EBEFEMNPE - )
in the PRC. The Group’s operating assets are It - WEREEEEP REEMNM
substantially situated in the PRC. Accordingly, AL EETH DD ©

no segment analysis based on geographical
locations of the customers and assets is
provided.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E
Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

5 OTHER (LOSS)/INCOME 5 HthEE (BA)
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREEF T
Government grants (including amortisation BT # B (‘B 1EMsT220 iR
of deferred income in Note 22) IEU S RO ) 1,225 754
Net gain on sales of scrap materials SHE BER 2 W F 58 665 686
Operating lease income LEHEEWA 31 236
Interest income FLEWA 239 148
Net gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE - BEMREZ
equipment WS FEE — 322
Net foreign exchange losses b 5 B 1R T 5 (2,835) (1,257)
Others Hith 79 285
(596) 1,174
6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6  BERBiIADER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRALADRF TR IBR (BT A A T S IHZ S
(crediting): o
(a) Finance costs (a) B
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Interest on bank and other loans $RITREME FKFIE 7,577 4,809

No borrowing costs have been capitalised during
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMBNIl).

(b)

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE - &
ERRARE R (2017F: ARKEE

TT) °

Staff costs* (b) BImA*
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREEFT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e s TENKEMET 26,271 21,277

Contributions to defined contribution ATEHFERIKRFT B

retirement plan 3,505 2,002
29,776 23,279
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

6  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 BRBIATER (&)
(b) Staff costs* (Continued) (b) BIRA*(E)

The employees of the subsidiary of the Group REERFE(TEEES) KB E
established in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) RNEINEE S NNAE BT EER
participate in the defined contribution retirement RERFRKBREE - Bk - ZME
benefit plan managed by the local government NEAREBELRFHSH20% [T E
authority, whereby this subsidiary is required to EHES - ZWBRARINEEEERIE
contribute to the scheme at a rate of 20% of the FERAEREERSZA DR 2
employees’ basic salaries. Employees of this RHRE(TREEE) FHEHEKE—TE
subsidiary are entitled to retirement benefits, AN LLETERRAKER] o

calculated based on a percentage of the average
salaries level in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong),
from the above-mentioned retirement plan at their
normal retirement age.

The Group has no further material obligation for Br EiR RN - REBIE S EMER
payment of other retirement benefits beyond the RN EMEREL -

above contributions.

(c) Otheritems (c) HAEAR
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AR¥ETT
(Note)
(F5E)
Depreciation and amortisation® mEREEY
(Notes 11 and 12) (MFEE11212) 12,804 8,905
Reversal of impairment losses on trade & 5 fE W ZUIB R ER (D
receivables (Note 24(a)) (FfizE24(a)) (321) —
Auditors’ remuneration 2 AT &
— in connection with the initial listing — BEARBROEIXE
of the Company’s shares mE#E 3,000 2,025
— audit service — FEETRE 1,300 —
Research and development costs TFEE RN 10,552 6,181
Cost of inventories* (Note 14(b)) FERA* (FisE14(b)) 173,915 158,107
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January 5 AEER2018E1A1AE N ERRE
2018. Under the transition method chosen, B2 B 7 RS RO o IRIEFTIEIE
comparative information is not restated. See Note BEEETE - LEVE R RGBT o B
2(c). MiEE2(c) °
# Cost of inventories includes RMB25,805,000 # BERADEEBETHRA « HE
(2017: RMB21,249,000) relating to staff costs, and R 44 B9 i) A R 05 805,0007T
deprecigtion an_d amortisgtion expenses, which (20174 : ARME21,249,0007T) + &
amount is also included in the respective total BeEHt A P X BT REy SEM
amounts disclosed separately above or in Note 6(b) SR T6(b) T HEREHEY -

for each of these types of expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E
Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

7 REBHERANARES

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) 4REBRRANMTBIERE :
loss represents:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Current taxation (Note 21(a)): BIHABETE (FiEE21(a))
Provision for the year FNEE 6,804 7,221
Deferred taxation (Note 21(b)): BB IR (HiEE21(b))
— Origination and reversal of — B EENESERED
temporary differences (1,964) (456)
— Withholding tax in connection — EAERE—RHENEA R
with the retained profits to be 1 T 53 Ik BGRB8 F 10
distributed by a subsidiary of the BB
Group — 2,000
(1,964) 1,544
4,840 8,765
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

7  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 BRBEBERANAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense and (b) HEAHFAEZERFIEM T Eeqt
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: a2 AR
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETT

Profit before taxation B Al A 32,856 43,820

Expected tax on profit before taxation, ¥z IR A B8 el A& %
calculated at the rates applicable to F 2 FREETH 2 BRFAT
profits in the jurisdictions concerned Ve M) 2 TRARR IR (B =

(Notes (i), (ii) and (iii)) (i) ~ (i) R (iii)) 8,488 11,062
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ~ TRAIHTI RIS 7 TIE 2 837 238
Tax effect on preferential tax rate BERER 2 BIEZ2 (i

(Note (iv)) (iv)) (3,303) (4.124)
Tax effect on bonus deduction of E T o Ny I i

research and development costs FRIE R 2 (KI5 (V)

(Note (v)) (1,182) (411)
Tax effect of the withholding tax in RS B — R B AR

connection with the retained profitsto P2 IREIRE % F B @
be distributed by a subsidiary of the HTEIF B S o 2
Group — 2,000

Actual tax expense EBRMIAR 4,840 8,765
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The Company and the subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”)
are not subject to any income tax pursuant to the
rules and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

(i)~ The Company and the subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: 16.5%). These companies
did not have assessable profits which are subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: RMBNIl).

(i) The subsidiary of the Group established in the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong) is subject to PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate at 25% for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: 25%).

(iv)  The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law allows
enterprises to apply for certificate of “High and New
Technology Enterprise” (“HNTE”) which entitles the
qualified companies to a preferential income tax
rate of 15%, subject to fulfilment of the recognition
criteria. Xian Tianrui is qualified as a HNTE and the
qualification was valid for three years from 2016 to
2018.

(v)  According to the relevant tax rules in the PRC,
qualified research and development costs, are
allowed for bonus deduction for income tax purpose,
i.e. an additional 75% (2017: 50%) of such expenses
could be deemed as deductible expenses.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

7 REBHERANAEHRE)

(b)

RERREFE 2 BERH AR BEst
A2 BB ¢ ()

Wi

()

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

ARRRAEBERRERELFE R
BRLESE DEMKZ 2B RRE
JARBEEE B M B RADER RAR
B ERRISH -

EHZE2018F12A31HILEE » AR
AIRAEEREBFMERLZ WEA
AIZE1E16.5% 2 B KN E ST
(20174 : 16.5%) - HLE=20184F 12
A31HLLFE @ ZERFMEEEA
BME BN SHERBUSF (2017
F:ARETT) -

HZE2018F12A31HILEE - K&
BRPECIEIEES)RIMNEA
RIZEIR25% 2 B RGP B ¥ FTTE
(20174 : 25%) °

CoR £ A 19 ) o ¥ 00 S ER
[ B HTET G % ([ BB % )8
& U EAARCEN EEERN
BBE15% AT ARREE - &
= IREGA BRI R AN - BB
P& 15 520165 220184 A= 4
A -

RIEFEBBHRUURTE - &HRIEK
ANA] AERTS T B M2 pnEtiED -
B2 E M EEINTE% (20174 -
50% ) AIAREATE IR »
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEMS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIEFS QN THEHIZEI83(N)IE R AR (FKE
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part EEFRER)RPFEFBENESFHNN
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Nk

Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2018
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Total
¥e 28
Eshe RENERN BMERAL  RIGTEER @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR ARETR ARBTR AREFR ARETR

Executive directors HTEE
Mr Hou Jianli FHEFLE - 142 - 32 174
Ms Chen Bierui BRI 2T - 128 - - 128
Mr Zhao Shijie e - 162 - 49 21

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Mr Zhu Honggiang PRAL: — = = - -
Mr Zhou Genshu [l - = = = -
Mr Shin Yick Fabian EHEE = = - - -
— 432 — 81 513
2017
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses contributions Total
e 28
£k REMEF WL RINTEIER a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NREFT ANRETTT NS ANRETTT NS
Executive directors HTES
Mr Hou Jianli REFISE — 131 — 12 143
Ms Chen Bierui BAl L - 68 — - 68
Mr Zhao Shijie e - 166 — 12 178
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

On 9 May 2018, Mr Hou Jianli, Ms Chen Bierui and Mr
Zhao Shijie were redesignated as executive directors of
the Company. On 18 December 2018, Mr Zhu Honggiang,
Mr Zhou Genshu and Mr Shin Yick Fabian were appointed
as independent non-executive directors of the Company.
There were no amounts paid during the year to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2017: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the other two (2017: three) individuals are as follows:

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

EEMe@®

2018F5A9H  EEF LA ~ BRI L
T REHELERATARARRITES - 1
2018 128181 » KAL&LA - ARE
ERES LRI ARNARBIIENTE
£ o FNANEEBEME S (R EHBE
ARSI % E 0 AR B 5l A 14 1) 82 B ok Bk
(e o

BEeaHFMAL
hEZERHFATFRLIRNE =% (20174 : @
HIESR  HNSFHBEBENHES - REE
SOSREARE - SRR (2017F  =F)ATH
RN T ¢

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Salaries and other emoluments HehEMmE 497 557
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 62 33
559 590

The emoluments of the individuals who are not directors
and who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of
the Group are within the following band:

Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”)
Nil to HK$1,000,000

T3 T2 1,000,000 7T

AEEREREHFALTHLIFEEEHALH
BN NATEER

2018 2017
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

N - ANEL

2 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 is calculated based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB28,016,000 (2017: RMB35,055,000) and the
weighted average of 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares,
comprising 100 ordinary shares in issue as at the
date of the prospectus of the Company dated 15
January 2019 and 1,499,999,900 ordinary shares
issued pursuant to the capitalisation issue, as if
the above total of 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares
were outstanding throughout the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

The calculation of the weighted average number of
ordinary shares are as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1A1BRETE AR

Issuance of shares upon the AR RIFEM A S B 27T
incorporation of the Company (Note % 1 (Bt E23(b)(ii))
23(b)(if))

10 BRER

(@)

Effect of capitalisation issue (Note 23(b) B4 EEiTHI £
(iii)) (B3 23(b)(iii))

BREXZEF
HZE2018F12A31HILFENGRE
AN B F) ThAR R AN N B RE A5 AR SR R AR
M AR#E28,016,000(20174F : AR
35,055,000) 7T & B 317 & M AR 69 hn
F19%1,500,000,000 5t EEBH - &
RERERAEARATN2019F1 158 KR
REZEBITHI100R L BIR RIBEE
AL EE1TH91,499,999, 9008 i@ AL -
N Fiut4 $£1,500,000,0000% & i A%
HEEZE2018F 201712 A31A ILF
ERN—ED T -

EBRAIEFOSETENT -

2018 2017

100 —

— 100

1,499,999,900 1,499,999,900

Weighted average number of ordinary 12831 H E3@A% AnkE

shares at 31 December F5 gL

1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000

Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

(b)

SREEREA
HE2018FE K2017E12A31H 1IHE
& EEEEERG -
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Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 9% BERRKE
Motor
Machinery vehicles
Plant and and and other  Construction
buildings equipment Moulds equipment in progress Total
RER
BEREF  HEREE BA Bk ERIRE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR%TR  ARBTrT ARETR  ARETR  AR%TR
Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 50,284 19,606 22,788 3915 — 96,593
Additions HE 679 7,081 5,448 1177 1,944 16,329
Disposals HE — — — (692) — (692)
At 31 December 2017 2017512318 50,963 26,687 28,236 4,400 1,944 112,230
Accumulated depreciation: ~ Z3HTE
At 1 January 2017 20171 A18 (4,748) (6,297) (7,69) (2,706) - (21,449)
Charge for the year FRZ (1,254) (2,165) (4,835) (445) — (8,699)
Written back on disposals HERED - — - 613 — 613
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 (6,002) (8.462) (12,533) (2,538) - (29,535)
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 December 2017 2017512318 44,961 18,225 15,703 1,862 1,944 82,695
Cost: R
At1 January 2018 201851 1A 50,963 26,687 28,236 4,400 1,944 112,230
Additions AE 4,188 10,738 20,736 1,056 7,686 44,404
Transfer in/(out) #) /(&) 3,115 — — - (3,115) -
At 31 December 2018 R2018%128318 58,266 37,425 48972 5,456 6,515 156,634
Accumulated depreciation:  RiHFE
At 1 January 2018 R2018451 A1H (6,002) (8.462) (12,533) (2,538) - (29,535)
Charge for the year FRZ (1,345) (3,057) (7,651) (545) — (12,598)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12R31H (7,347) (11,519) (20,184) (3,083) - (42,133)
Carrying amount: SR :
At 31 December 2018 201812318 50,919 25,906 28,788 2,373 6,515 114,501
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )
12 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

12 HEFENFE

RMB’000
ARBTT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, MR2017F1 818 ~ 2017F 128318 &
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 2018%F12A31H 10,722
Accumulated amortisation: G fic
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H (824)
Charge for the year FAZW (206)
At 31 December 2017 M2017512H31H (1,030)
Charge for the year FAZW (206)
At 31 December 2018 20185 12H31H (1,236)
Carrying amount: FRMEE :
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 9,486
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12H31H 9,692

Lease prepayments represent land use right premiums
paid by the Group for land located in the PRC. The land
use right is with a lease period of 50 years.

HA504F -
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13
The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place and date Particulars of The Group’s

of establishment/  registered/issued effective

incorporation and paid-up capital interest
Name of subsidiaries RI/ER HM/ERAR pi3-1: ]
WEARER Rut#RA®  HTEREE BER
Xian Tianrui (E%ZKI5/7E  The PRC RMB50,000,000 100%

mEt AR AR 22 May 2009 AR#50,000,0007C

e

20095 A 220
Ryford*™ The BVI United States Dollars 100%

5May 2017 (“USD”) 100,100 shares

RERIES of USD 1 each

201745858 ELI00RERAEIETH

Tt

Tianrui International ** Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100%
PN :E 13 June 2017 1,0008A (3

Bl

201746 A 13H
* The English translation of the name is for identification

only. The official name of the entity is in Chinese. This
entity is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in
the PRC.

> These companies are limited liability companies
incorporated outside of the PRC.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

RBERRNRE
UTERBBEEBYEAKERE - BEX
BENMBRRFE - RIFEREHA - IR
BRI BRI ST A -

Percentage of
ownership interest
FEREADL

Held by the Held by a
Company  subsidiary
NG WEAF  Principal activities
] BE IEEH

— 100%  Manufacture and sale of
automotive interior and
exterior decorative
components and parts

BRI P ER
#HE

100% — Investment holding

— 100%  Investment holding

BRI RMAPX - RGEEMREG -
ZERBRHEEMAINEEEDRE -

o RERRRETEEIEMRINERA

2%
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

14 INVENTORIES 14 ®FE&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) HREVBRRRPNEFEEFEUATE
financial position comprise: |
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Raw materials and consumables R R SRR 11,879 9,080
Work in progress fE&m 2,313 3,692
Finished goods A S 13,060 16,600
27,252 29,372
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) CEIRMIATFAGFEERERNIFE
recognised as an expense and included in the SWOMWT
consolidated statement of profit or loss is as
follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EREFERRE 173,915 158,107
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Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

15 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 15 EZRWREREKRERE
31 December 1January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E-N\F
+=A ZE—N\F +=A
=+—H —A—H =+—H
RMB’000 —RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT AREFIT
Trade receivables, H 5 W ERIE
net of loss allowance (I EEEE)
(Note (i) (MFEE (D)) 78,094 87,069 87,847
Bills receivables JEU R IE 54,871 40,486 40,486
132,965 127,555 128,333
Note: MIEE -

(i) Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, an opening adjustment at 1
January 2018 was made to recognise additional ECLs on
trade receivables (see Note 2(c)(i)).

All of the trade and bills receivables, net of loss allowance
for doubtful debts (if any), are expected to be recovered
within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
At the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice
date (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

(iy IRMBIBREIISIRE ERIFOFRIE - KR20184F

1A 1B R E AR E 5 RUGTIRR

FINEEEERBE(RME2(c)))) -

P B 5 FERUGRIR K R =18 (INBR R AR

(anH)) BRI —FRULE -

(@) SRERZAT

R ERRENERE R R (RBAER
BH(MHERF)) RNBERRENES
FEYCRIA K R IR AR I AT 20T

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTIT

Less than 3 months 3ME A AR 82,176 87,302
3 to 6 months 3EA=6fEA 34,721 36,195
6 to 12 months 61E A =121E A 16,068 4,836
132,965 128,333

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables
are set out in Note 24(a).

BRARNEEEEBR K E 5 BUGIRR
EWREBEELNEERRNE—FFHIE

o P EE24(a) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

15 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Transfer of financial assets

The Group receives short-term bank acceptance
notes from its customers as a method of settlement
of goods sold. These notes entitle the Group to
receive the full face values from the issuing banks
upon the maturities of these notes, which generally
range from 3 to 6 months from the dates of issuance.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had discounted
certain of the bank acceptance notes at banks, and
endorsed certain of the bank acceptance notes to
its suppliers and other creditors for settlement of the
Group’s trade and other payables on a full recourse
basis. Upon the above discounting or endorsement,
the Group has derecognised the bills receivables in
their entirety. These derecognised bank acceptance
notes have maturity dates of less than six months
from the end of the reporting period. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of these notes and has discharged its
obligation of the payables to its suppliers and other
creditors. The Group assessed that the discounted
and endorsed bank acceptance notes were issued
by highly-rated issuing banks, the credit risks
were relatively insignificant and the Group was not
exposed to the relative interest risk. At 31 December
2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to loss and
undiscounted cash outflow should the issuing banks
fail to settle the bills on maturity dates amounted to
RMB117,273,000 (2017: RMB49,302,000).

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

15 EFEWFEREREE S

(b)

BREREE

AEBEBHEFPREIERRITALESR
EREERMN—BEREE - ZFER
B T AR BN AN ZE R R B
WRIFRRITHEZHEE - ZFRE—
fir B R A HIEG SHISE A =6ME A -

M2018F 128310 - NEEERITH
BTFRITERGEZETTRIR - WAE
HEBKEMEEASES TRITEARL
[BE - DR BREEELEAEE
KB SFENFIE R EAL A FIE o 5L
FRTHARIR S ER - AEBEB 2R
IHEREWEE - ZSERKREHERA
FITEARIEZMEE B B RS HARBET
TRAMEA - KRRBIEERAE  AEH
BEEZEZENARNBRALSD
B R ER - WE BT R kA
BREANNRET - REBFE B
BB N EERTANEZHS TR
MFAZERITET  EERREERE
MAEEW REEHABFERRE - B
2018F12A31H ' WFAZRRITHAEIE
BREELEERE  BIAEENZAR
KERABBERESRERABAERESA
R#117,273,0007C( 20174 : AR
49,302,0007T) °
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16 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 FAMNRERHtLERRIE
(a) Prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant (a) BEYXE BERRENENRE

and equipment

The amount at 31 December 2018 represents
prepayments for the Group’s contracted acquisitions
of moulds and machinery.

(b) Prepayments and other receivables (b)

F20185F 12 431 B FIAE AR EER]
VAHBEEARMERNTANOR -

BNRER A KRR
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTTT

Advances to staff M8 TER 493 277
Others Hth 622 490
Financial assets measured REHR AT E R
at amortised cost TRIBE 1,115 767
Prepayments for purchase of raw FREE R M RO TES
materials E 2,494 4,093
Prepayments for costs incurred in AR &R ETFrE
connection with the initial listing of AR AR TR IR
the Company’s shares (Note (i)) (FREG)) 7,715 3,274
10,209 7,367
11,324 8,134

All of the prepayments and other receivables are
expected to be recovered, recognised as expenses
or transferred to equity within one year.

Note:

(i) The balance at 31 December 2018 will be charged
to profit or loss or transferred to the share premium
account within equity upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange in
January 2019.

P A TR SRR R ALt R UGR IR TR AT A —
FRAAKRE - ERERX B RERE

ﬁ o

Fi5E

(iy  M2018F12A31HHMLRIEN AR
FIRDA20194F 1 A RBE R EH1&

WNEEHR BB ER S PR T
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

17 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Cash at bank and on hand comprise:

17 RORFERASURHMRSREESR

(a) RORFHEASEHE:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Cash at bank and on hand IRITRFHERS 13,385 27,695
Restricted bank deposits (Note (i)) ZBRHIRITF IR (HIFE () 20,000 10,970
Cash at bank and on hand in the RERA B SRR R 8
consolidated statement of financial IRITNFERE
position 33,385 38,665
Less: restricted bank deposits B ZRFIRITFR
(Note (i)) (BEE (1)) (20,000) (10,970)
Cash and cash equivalents in the RiFaREmnERNRE
consolidated cash flow statement KR EEY 13,385 27,695

The Group’s operation in the PRC (excluding Hong

AEERFE (BERINGENER

134

Kong) conducted its business in RMB. RMB is not
a freely convertible currency and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) is
subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the
PRC government.

Note:

(i) At the end of the reporting period, bank deposits
are pledged as guarantees for bank acceptance
bills issued by the Group (see Note 19).

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

AANREERR - AR IER] B i i
B BESERDE(EBRINEAT
R BIBR AT e DN E SRR B ©

f -

()  RAREPFRROTFREEAEREE
BT 2 RITR L ER (HRE19) ¥
o
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17 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 17 RITRFRASURHMHRSREER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) (#8)

(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising (b) METDELENEERABNEIE
from financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TR EEREEEFISEERE
assets and liabilities from financing activities, BHNEE  BIERERIERSFE - fm
including both cash and non-cash changes. BRBAMBREDNREREBIARRE R
Liabilities arising from financing activities are MEBRAEENGERERERFT S
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash HARERDFAEHRERENAE -

flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
cash flow statement as cash flows from financing

activities.
Liabilities
8E
Included Amounts
in accrued due to the
Bankand  expenses and Interest controlling
other loans  other payables payable  shareholders Total
HRk ER%R EfiE R
HHER  AfENRE RIS TR 88
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEBTT ARETT ARETT NRETT NEETT
(Note 18) (Note 20)
(Hiz18) (BzE20)
At1 January 2018 201851518 93,088 6,750 - 31,564 131,402
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ REREFERE
Proceeds from bark and other loans IR EMETHETE 130,000 - - - 130,000
Repayment of bank and other loans ~ EERAREMEF (170,280) - - - (170,280)
Payments for acquision of Xian BAE TURRTRRON
Tianti E - (6:756) - (612%9) (68,025)
Netincrease in the amounts due to YR RERLmEE
the controlling shareholders - - — 30,591 30,591
Interest paid BfiflE - - (757) - (7577)
Dividends paid EfilkE - (12,180) - - (12,180)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ B&B 4 FEEHHE (40.280) (18,966) (7577) (30,648) (97.471)
Other changes: L
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) BTBAR (HiFH6(a) - - 7511 - 15171
Dividends declared during the year ERERERE(H323(c)
(Note 23(c) - 13,804 - - 13,804
Exchange adjustments ERRE - 3% - 489 525
Total other changes b ihes - 13,840 7517 489 21906
At 31 December 2018 2018128318 52,808 1,624 — 1,405 56,837
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

17 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising

from financing activities (Continued)

17 RORFERASURHMRSREESR

(#&)

(b) BMEFBELNEERBENHRGE)

Liabilities Assets
Ef &g
Included Amounts due
in accrued from/(to) the
Bankand  expenses and Interest controlling
otherloans  other payable payable  shargholders Net
BIR [ESAXR Jel/ (fef) )
SR EfbRATE EffE  BRRERE 58
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTL ARBTT ARETTL ARETTL ARBTTL
(Note 18) (Note 20)
(Hiz18) (Kizt20)
At1 January 2017 R2017E1 1R 48,500 - - 106,484 (56,984)
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEREHEHE
Proceeds from bank and other loans BT REMETHERE 132588 — - - 132,588
Repaymentof bank and other loans ~ EEHITREMER (88,000) - - - (88,000)
Net increase in the amounts due YR RREENEE
from the controlling shareholders - = - 28,702 (28,702)
Interest paid EffIE - - (4,809) - (4.809)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ B&E 4 FEEHHE 4588 - (4.809) 28702 1,077
Other changes: Htgs:
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) BTBAR (HizE6(a) - - 4,809 - 4809
Non-cash reclassfication of payable B4 FMERZ KRR
for acquisttion of Xian Tianrui FRFEREENE
(Note (i) (BsE() - 6,750 - (60,750) 67,500
Non-cash transactions (Note (i) L5 () - - - (105,000 105,000
Total other changes LpE9as - 6,750 4809 (165,750) 177,309
At 31 December 2017 R2017E125318 93,088 6,750 - (31,564) 131,402
(i) The amounts due from the controlling shareholders (i) HZE2017F12A31HILEFE « UL

were set-off by profit distribution by a subsidiary
of the Group of RMB55,000,000 (Note 23(c)(ii)), the
reduction of capital of a subsidiary of the Group
of RMB50,000,000 (Note 23(d)(ii)), and the payable
of RMB60,750,000 as a result of acquisition of the
equity interest in Xian Tianrui during the year ended
31 December 2017.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

TR R RIA R AL E —ENE AR
3% F 2k A R #55,000,0007T (Bt
FE23(c)(ii)) « ANEE—FEHE A A
A AR¥E50,000,0007T (i EE23(d)
(i) ) B2 Uit B8 7 22 K B AR 1) B A1 5K 0
AER#60,750,0007T FriE 4 o
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18 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 18 |ITREMER
(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans (a) AEEEHRITRAMGERESE :
comprise:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Bank loans: IRITEN :
— Secured by trade and bills — BAEEE ZEKIE
receivables of the Group T SRR AR (B =T
(Note 18(d)) 18(d)) 11,073 9,500
— Secured by property, plant and
equipment of the Group — BHAREEYE  BER
(Note 18(d)) RAEHER (T 18(d)) 3,500 —
14,573 9,500
Other loans: HER :
— Secured by trade and bills — BAAKEE FEWIA
receivables of the Group T2 U ZE 4 4
(Note 18(d)) (F5E18(d)) 21,950 49,088
36,523 58,588
Add: current portion of long-term bank il : RHEAISRTT R H &R E
and other loans (Note 18(b)) BIERER 5 (P31 18(b)) 926 19,500
37,449 78,088
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

18 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)

18 H{ITREMER (&)

The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (b) FEBRHAKRTREMEREE:
comprise:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T AREFTT
Bank loans: HRITEN -
— Secured by property, plant and — BAErEEYE  BER
equipment and land use right of BB AR £t A
the Group and guaranteed by the AR R B AR AR R
controlling shareholders FEAR(MIEE18(d))
(Note 18(d)) 15,000 24,500
— Secured by property, plant and — HAAEEYE - BER
equipment of the Group AR (FEE18(d))
(Note 18(d)) — 10,000
15,000 34,500
Other loans: HER
— Secured by property, plant and — HBAEEYE - BEK
equipment of the Group and R K BT ARAR
guaranteed by the controlling ER(IEE18(d))
shareholders (Note 18(d)) 1,285 —
16,285 34,500
Less: current portion of long-term bank & : K EI$R1T R H M E
and other loans (Note 18(a)) K BIERER & (P 5%
18(a)) (926) (19,500)
15,359 15,000

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A



18 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)
The Group’s long-term bank and other loans are

()

(d)

(e)

Notes to the Financial Statements

repayable as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

18 H{ITREMER (&)

()

AEBEEERARTRAMERD
T :

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Within 1 year or on demand 1ERHIZER 926 19,500
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZ{BR2FR 15,359 15,000
16,285 34,500

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are

(d)

secured by the following assets of the Group:

FEENETROTRAMERHARE
BT EEFERR

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREETF T

Carrying value of secured assets: EREENREE
Property, plant and equipment WE - R MR 57,060 47,243
Lease prepayments MEENHIEA 9,486 9,692
Trade and bills receivables H 5 IEWGRIE K EW R R 41,241 76,953
107,787 133,888

At 31 December 2018, the banking facilities of

(e)

the Group amounted to RMB41,285,000 (2017:
RMB35,470,000) were utilised to the extent of
RMB36,285,000 (2017: RMB35,470,000). The amount
was secured by personal guarantees from the
controlling shareholders and/or pledged by land
use right of a company controlled by the controlling

shareholders (Note 26(b)).

R2018412H31H » KEETC EHN
IRITREEEE A AR 41,285,000
(20174 « AR¥35,470,0007T) + Hrh
AR#36,285,0007T (20174 : AR
35,470,00070) BB ° ZERITHEE
RS 2 IR AR IR A B A B REST
BR R SAERAR RSN AEM L
{5 R A 1 T IR IR (T 5E26(b)) ©
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18 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 18 MITREMERE)

(f) Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are () ATEEETRITREMERGAEMSE
subject to the fulfilment of covenants commonly CRBEREERHTBEIIINRZ
found in lending arrangements with financial o WASBEREE  AIZEERH
institutions. If the Group were to breach the RARERER - NEBETHHERELE
covenants, the loans would become repayable TRELENBN - BEAREER
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its BERBREER 2 E—FIFIBHNMT
compliance with these covenants. Further details 24(b)  7A2018F12 318 » EER
of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set ERARITREMERAI (20174 -
out in Note 24(b). At 31 December 2018, none of the E:: I

covenants relating to the bank and other loans had
been breached (2017: None).

19 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 19 EFENRERENZE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Trade payables B SN EIR 96,867 98,921
Bills payables JENZE 40,000 21,940
Financial liabilities measured at RN AGT 28
amortised cost c@mafE 136,867 120,861
All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be FMEESEMNRBERENZEEEAN—FA
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. RESIRERER -
At the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of RERRENEZHHNE S RARIERL
trade and bills payables, based on the invoice date, is as FERNERRBES ST :
follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Less than 3 months & A AR 54,432 59,490
3 to 6 months 3f&E A =6fE A 70,476 50,072
6 to 12 months 61 A =121E A 10,001 9,688
Over 1 year 1FE 1,958 1,611

136,867 120,861
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20 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES
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Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

20 MEFFAXRHEAMmEMNRKE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREEF T
Payables for staff related costs BT HBENAEN A 1,642 3,506
Payables for acquisitions of property, plant ~ BEEW¥ - FE KR E
and equipment and land use right K 3 AR FE T FRIE 11,140 5,820
Payables for other taxes HA T IR RE T FRIR 2,917 3,456
Payables for costs incurred in connection RARRMGERET
with the initial listing of the Company’s FFTE HE P AN FE ST 5RIR
shares 7,783 2,794
Payable for acquisition of equity interest in FEAST YRR AR F UK BE
Xian Tianrui to the controlling shareholders  FAZ Kis A& HEE) 7K1 = 6,750
Dividends payable to the controlling JERTEAR AR BR AR B
shareholders (Note 23(c)) (MH7¥E23(c)) 1,624 —
Others Hth 2,470 1,294
Financial liabilities measured at amortised RHEHEKATENSRE
cost f& 27,576 23,620

All of the accrued expenses and other payables are
expected to be settled within one year or are repayable

on demand.

(@

P A FE AT R S I Bt FE (S SRR TERT R —F A
BESRBREE -

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 REEHBMRRRHAER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Movements of current taxation in the (a) RESHBARRKRNEDHBIRSBERT
consolidated statement of financial position are mE
set out below:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
At the beginning of the year REF 1,406 2,324
Provision for the year (Note 7(a)) FREME (K7 () 6,804 7,221
Income tax paid BATATSH (5,892) (8,139)
At the end of the year RER 2,318 1,406
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21

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b)

21 REEHBRREROFABH (&)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) EZEHEBEEE (BF)BIAWT :
The components of deferred tax assets and REFEEEA I BRR TR AR IELT
liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement MIEEBERABBEKY REBHT -
of financial position and the movements during the
year are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =l
Withholding
Government tax for
grants and retained
subsequent Credit loss profits to be
amortisation allowance Sub-total distributed Net
BRRER BARNRE
Hieds GHEEREE Pt BRZEOH RE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ANRETT N S ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2017 H2017E1A1H 221 — 221 — 221
Credited/(charged) to the STAGABER/ (B
consolidated statement of BERRNR) (i
profit or loss (Note 7(a)) 7(a)) 456 — 456 (2,000) (1,544)
At 31 December 2017 2017123318 677 — 677 (2,000) (1,323)
Impact on initial application of ¥ & X EMEEHHRE
IFRS 9 (Note 2(c)() 8B HTS(H
F2(c)i) — 17 17 — 17
Adjusted balance at 1 January #2018 1 A1 B A HEL
2018 # 677 17 794 (2,000) (1,206)
(Charged)/oredited to the (BFaBERNR) /
consolidated statement of SrAGABRR (I
profit or loss (Note 7(a)) 7(a)) (34) (2) (36) 2,000 1,964
At 31 December 2018 520185128317 643 115 758 - 758

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 REFEEHBARR RN AEH ()

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (c) MABIENELEHREERE
Except for deferred tax liabilities recognised in Note BrBf a2t (b) A HERAELER B A G
21(b), taxable temporary differences relating to S - R2018F 12 A31H B L KInH
the undistributed profits of Xian Tianrui amounted ROIEFBENERTEREEE R
to RMB52,429,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017: AR#52,429,0007T (20174 : AR
RMB24,975,000), where deferred tax liabilities in 24,975,0007T) + HAAERZFRF D
respect of the PRC Withholding Tax that would be IR R BITEIF A AR IES &
payable on the distributions of these profits, have mARIER - RERAND TSI KR
not been recognised as the Company controls MR EBR BB EZ SR AN R
the dividend policy of Xian Tianrui and it has been RARATRET DK ©

determined that it is probable that such profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

22 DEFERRED INCOME 22 GEEWA
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREETT
At the beginning of the year REH] 2,797 905
Additions NE — 2,000
Credited to the consolidated statement of FFASREERRK
profit or loss (225) (108)
At the end of the year RER 2,572 2,797
Deferred income represents government grants received RIEW A EEAEBYE - BE M&RE
in connection with the construction of the Group’s W FB) - MmN EEEER I {F B
property, plant and equipment. The grants are being FHARNEEG o IRIEWABENGAEBRERN
amortised over the useful lives of the related assets. [Eb(EE), WA IR AR -

Amortisation of deferred income is included in “other
(loss)/income” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS/ 23 BX - #ERRE DK
DISTRIBUTIONS
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HERIoHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBEGE RSB D B F I ERE R
balances of each component of the Group’s EREVEIRRE N RS R E T RN o

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Details of the changes of the Company’s individual RATREEEHINEVEFRENE
components of equity between the beginning and B)EFBEEINT

the end of the year are set out below:

Share Share Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
R Riva® B RE ZieA s

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT NEBTT ARBFT AREFT ARETT
(Note 23(b)) ~ (Note 23(d)(i))  (Note 23(d)(iv))
(Fsoab))  (Bsk2d(d)i)  (BEE23(a)(iv)

At 27 April 2017 R2017E4B27R

(date of incorporation) (EMALAE) - - - - -
Changes in equity for the period from ~ E2017£4 727 (A

27 April 2017 (date of incorporation) LA H)Z2017E128

o 31 December 2017: SEHEAELREE
Loss and other comprehensive income for ~ MEBBREMZASA
the period - - — - -
At 31 December 2017 and R2017E12B318 R
1 January 2018 218%181A - - - - -
Changes in equity for the yearended ~ EZ2018%1231F
31 December 2018: LERERESE
Profit for the year ERgh] - - - 13,804 13,804
Other comprehensive income for the year — FREfI2ERA - - 2816 - 2816
Total comprehensive income ERZEERA - - 2816 13,804 16,620
Issuance of shares (Note 23(b)ii) Tt B3 (MsE23(b)i) - 64,648 - - 64,648
Capitalisation issue (Note 23(o)(i) BRIE(E3()
i) 13216 (13.216) - - -
Dividends declared in respect of the HERERMRE (M
previous Year (Note 23(c)) 23(c)) - — — (13,804) (13,804)
13216 51,432 - (13,804) 50,844
Balance at 31 December 2018 R2018E12531R 13,216 51,432 2,816 - 67,464
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Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

23 EBXR - #HERKRE 2IKRE)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS/
DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued)

(b) Share capital (b) M=
2018 2017
No. of shares No. of shares
Ri#HE ki #e
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
T BETT T BETT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each  SARE(EO0.0178 T L BAL
(Note 23(b)i) (HzE23(0)() 10,000,000 100,000 10,000 100
2018 2017
No. of Shares RMB’000 No. of Shares RMB'000
R EE ARET T ki #e NS
Ordinary shares, issued and BETRERHLER -
fully paid:
At 1 January M1A1H 100 - — —
Issuance of shares (Note 23(o)(i)) B/ %77(PEE23(b) i) - - 100 -
Capitalisation issue (Note 23(o)(il)) B2k 217 (FifzE23(0) i) 1,499,999,900 13,216 — —
At 31 December R128318 100,000,000 13,216 100 —
(i)  Authorised share capital (i) ZERL

The Company was incorporated as an
exempted company under the laws of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 27
April 2017 with authorised share capital of
HK$100,000 divided into 10,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the equity
shareholders of the Company passed on
18 December 2018, the authorised share
capital of our Company was increased from
HK$100,000 divided into 10,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each to HK$100,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

AARF2017F4 B 27 BIRERF
EREFEAMK I AEREE
RAa - JAERZAA100,000%
7T * 9 A10,000,0008% & I 1E
0.0 BT ©

BIEAR QA =R RAR20184F
12A18AMMBMNERRZER + &
NEPAFEMZH 100,000 7T (59
/10,000,0000% FAXFEI{E0.01;8
TCEYR% 17 ) 1 2= 100,000,000 7T
(% #10,000,000,000/% & AR E &
0.01BTTHRRM,)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS/
DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued)
Share capital (Continued)

(b)

()

(ii)

(iii)

Issuance of shares

On 27 April 2017, the Company allotted
and issued 100 shares at par value of
HK$0.01 each, nil paid. On 29 March
2018, the aggregated subscription price of
HK$80,020,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMBG64,648,000) was credited as fully paid.

Capitalisation issue

Pursuant of the resolutions of the equity
shareholders of the Company passed on 18
December 2018, the Company allotted and
issued a total of 1,499,999,900 shares credited
as fully paid to the equity shareholders whose
names appeared on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on
18 December 2018 by way of capitalisation
of the sum of HK$14,999,999 (equivalent to
approximately RMB13,216,000) standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the
Company.

Dividends/distributions

(@)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year

Final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period of
HK$0.006 per ordinary share
(2017: HK$170,000 per ordinary
share)

23 BXR - #HERKRE 2IKRE)

(b)

(c)

R BIRIZ R AR AP
% 85 & i@A%0.00678
JC(20174 IR TR
170,000/ 7T)

IR ()

(ii)

(iii)

BR1ET

R2017F4827H - KRARIEHE
2% N 31710008 F IR EI(E0.0175
TR D - BARBERRRG -
HN201843A29H @ HRERE
80,020,000/ T (FAERLHAR
#64,648,0007T) B ABRYI A#
}i °

BT

AR ERmKREN2018F12
R18HBBZ REHE + AR 7
EEBABAQNTRMEERF
14,999,999 T (HERHAR
#13,216,0007T ) HYEBR R 4B 58
BIREAFR - [2018F 127518
H & R EERER SR AQ R
AR RS REITE
$£1,499,999,9000% A &SI A4 2
B& SR 2 BEAD ©

B2 2K
() FREMNKR AR KRIKE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
10,220 13,804

The final dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period has not been recognised
as a liability at the end of the reporting period.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS/
DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued)
(c) Dividends/distributions (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

23 EBXR - #HERKRE 2IKRE)

(c) BE %

K (%)

Dividends/distributions payable to equity (i) REAH BT KGR
shareholders of the Company attributable RE—HBFEEZENELLAE
to the previous financial year, approved and BREIIRE - BIR
paid/payable during the year
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Final dividend/distribution in RERBOEN /BT
respect of the previous financial &) F—BF B FE R HAR%
year, approved and paid/ B/ DK
payable during the year 13,804 55,000
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) FENHEEREN
Share premium () REGEE
The application of the share premium account B EEBRZEASETREE
is governed by the Companies Law (as fT 4R i%ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬂxﬁ%ﬁﬁj
revised) of the Cayman Islands as amended, E (ISR RE
consolidated or supplemented from time to
time.
Other reserve (i) EHftfEE

(i)

The other reserve at 1 January 2017
represented the paid-in capital of a PRC
subsidiary of the Group, namely Xian Tianrui.

In 2017, Xian Tianrui reduced its paid-
up in capital from RMB100,000,000 to
RMB50,000,000. The reduction of capital was
used to set-off the amounts due from the
controlling shareholders (Note 17(b)(i)).

Pursuant to the Reorganisation completed on
14 November 2017, the Company became the
holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group and accordingly,
the paid-in capital of the PRC subsidiary
of the Group was eliminated against the
consideration of RMB67,500,000 when
preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

2017451 B 1B H b E R A
EE-XFTPBEMMBEAR (BIALR
Kin) B BT -

R2017F » L RIsHE SR
A AR #100,000,0007TH =
AE#50,000,0007T © :ZARARH
D P A 3K 85 B AU IZE RS A BR 3R 1B
(MFEE17(D)(0)) °

BIER2017E11 B14B 2R E
B ARRNANEEBRET
ZRElzERAR - Bt ANE
ErFEMNBARNEMEAD
TERBUR A SRR EEMNSK
B AR #E67 500,000 #H -
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS/
DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued)

23 BXR - #HERKRE 2IKRE)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii) Statutory reserve
In accordance with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer
10% of its net profit each year to the statutory
reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distributions to equity
holders. This reserve can be utilised in setting
off accumulated losses or increase capital of
the subsidiary and is non-distributable other
than in liquidation.

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the
companies comprising the Group into the
Group’s presentation currency. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Note 2(r).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

(d)

(e)

IR B E) (F)

(i) EEFE
REBABETBUERZIESR A&
BN BERZOHEARASF
[AATE R B EL AU R #9 10% -
HEMRBEDEMERNS0% °
A% i BB R AR AR A A
DIRATVER o R AR R 38
B8~ B RETE IR IEE B
BBIMAI DR ©

(iv) EZ#E
R R EERBEKAEE
Z AR B HRIBERAEE
EREWELZFBINEZS -
ZREEREME2(r) ez g5t
HRERIE ©

aEXEE

AEEERERAZ T ZANEREAS
BREMRBISEGSEERELE - WM
BRBRERE® - WEREMT R
BAE AR ER R EEARBIAREER
PR o

AEETHTEHREHNREEREAR
B ARERSBEREMIER T A
Bz e B EKERRRNEANR RS
KBS M2 2 BEUS T - SRR
BN B EHEARB L RE -

AR R BV E AP B A R SRS
FHEMHEAIRE
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables
and contract assets. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and bills
receivables is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions with high credit
standings, for which the Group considers to have
low credit risk.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 December 2018, 46.4% (2017:
53.1%) of the total trade and bills receivables, was
due from the Group’s largest debtor, and 86.2%
(2017: 89.3%) of the total trade and bills receivables
was due from the Group’s five largest debtors,
respectively.

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)
24 BIBEKREERESBRIAQAAE

AEBEREEKBIETHREERE  RPE
& MERREERRE

A B0 % SR A R B PR
SRR HRRETIR RIEPRTINT -

(a) EERR
EERBIEHF I TBITANELME
BASEERSIEEENERR - AN5EE
NWEERBREZREE S RE R
BRENEE - AEBEMAZHREER
SRS EEMARBRZENEER
SAR  RERYFHAAASERSE
AT R SRS I E - A%
ERAEERREK -

AEETRHEEAEEERERRR
A EME AR

BESEWE
AEEABNEEEREESSEFEN
ERIE RS2 - MIEF AR
7% At EXEREERBREER
AEEEBENEFNERRBREE
4 - FA2018F12A31H - B 5B
T8 K JEUN VS 4850 7 46.4% (2017 4F ¢
53.1%) %86.2% (20174 : 89.3% )%
B A R A B R K ESA R B AER
AZFRIHE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 128318 |[FF[E
Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

24 BREREEREMIEQNAE®S

Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERBRGE)
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all REEHEREERB - TBNME
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. BESETEMNEENE - ZETEE
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past FREF BT B BAFE 2 5ek MR
history of making payments when due and current RITREEE S - UREEIIZF AR
ability to pay, and take into account information BRI R ER P @M HAEEIRIEE
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to AOER - BHEIGRIBENEE B EE
the economic environment in which the customer 30ZE90H A HIHY o ZN & F — A% A YR
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 EPOERR -
days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.
The Group measures loss allowances for trade REBRESHRUFERAFTHNEREE
receivables and contract assets at an amount BB EEFRNFBERENE
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a EBEEE  BES T AR EERE
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss FTEEBL - ARAEEES EEEIEL
experience does not indicate significantly different BWEBLRTRMAN T FEEBEERL
loss patterns for different customer segments, the MIEREREEZR  ALEREAEE
loss allowance based on past due status is not HEtEEABEERE— RO AEF
further distinguished between the Group’s different TEHEFPEFEE o
customer bases.
The following table provides information about the TREHBBAEREN2018F12H31
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade HEBRNEERRRE SR FIENTE
receivables at 31 December 2018: HMEEEBZER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEREEE HERTEE EEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARKETT
Ageing analysis of trade B 5 R IE R
receivables: o
Less than 3 months 3MEA AR 0.5% 75,997 (380)
3 to 6 months 3z6{EA 3.0% 2,534 (76)
6 to 12 months 6E 121 A 5.0% 20 (1)
78,551 (457)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past recent years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Comparative information under IAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence
of impairment (see Note 2(g)(i) — Policy applicable
prior to 1 January 2018). At 31 December 2017,
trade receivables of RMBNIil were determined to be
impaired. The ageing analysis of trade receivables
that were not considered to be impaired was as
follows:

Less than 3 months
3 to 6 months
6 to 12 months

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

24 BREREEREMIBENARAE®S

(a)

SEANUA
3%61EA
621218 A

EERE(E)
BHEBERXDENBELFNERER
KRETESH - ZFLRERBIARKR
Y = S B R A0 8B AOR ~ B AT
U B B2 [ 6 KSR TR TR B BN 4
AR BEEZ M ER -

B R E3955E T By AT H B #
2018F1 A1 A 2/l - BEBEENE
EERAEBBERNER (RME209)() —
R2018F1 B1AZAIEAMEER) - 1
2017F12A318 * ARBZLHE S
FEWFIEEE AEARE - REARE
HE S ENFIE Z RO T

2017
RMB’000
ARETT

75,184
11,547
1,116

87,847

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

W AR B RE 2 B 5 FE U IR BT H)
BRERRLERZEFAR -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 BIEEKREEREBMIAEQNAEBE®E
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERBRGE)
Comparative information under IAS 39 B Es R E395E T Ay a L E#
(Continued) (#8)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believed that no
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

Movements in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables during the year are as follows:

Balance at 31 December 2017 under  1RIZBIFR @ 4R 395

EEMERREZEBRKGRES T
RAEEFRIFBEENCH IBILE
FAR - RIBELER - EEERER

AR RO - FLBER & EERE
HORERAE o

N B E S OB R BB AR 1
SHERWT :

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

IAS 39 2017412 A318K)
%él: vIN — J—
Impact on initial application of IFRS 9 ¥ & /e BB B K iR
(Note 2(c)(i)) HEREFHTE
(B&E2(C)(i)) 778 —
Balance at 1 January 20181 A1 B &8 778 —
Reversal of impairment losses during € 35 4 58 (M43E6(c))
the year (Note 6(c)) (321) —
Balance at 31 December M2018F 12 431 H A& 457 —
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

24 BREREEREMIBENARAE®S

(b)

earliest dates the Group can be required to pay:

RBESERE
AEENHRETHERRBESFT K
FETEERHNER - RN EE G
FAMORTREE AT RS R
BRGEANAERERE  neH
SHIRERRBDESHFR

TRINRAEENITES R A BN R
FHROFERE QBB AAMR - THRE
BERTORMIRBSRE ( MEB?ET%’J%'J
KA EHMENR - LWL EFE
AR E RO E A KRG E) hA%
BZAS N FIRNRF ARG -

2018
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
THARBRR SR
More than
Within 1 year but
1 year or less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Total amount
15/ BB1FE
RER DR2E act SREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR
Bank and other loans FIREMER 39,121 15,949 55,070 52,808
Trade and bills payables measured at BB A ENE RN
amortised cost FELERNER 136,867 = 136,867 136,867
Accrued expenses and other payables  IEE B A BN B R
measured at amortised cost Hi R 27,576 - 27,576 27,576
203,564 15,949 219,513 217,251
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Expressed in RMB(AA B2 7 )

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 BH¥EREERRESMIAEARE®R
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESER(E)
2017
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
TRARBRE SR
More than
Within 1 year but
1 year or less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Total amount
1ER; BBIER
REX DRE & REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTL ARETL ARBFTL
Bank and other loans BTRAMER 82,697 15,569 98,266 93,088
Trade and bills payables measured at REER A ENE SRR
amortised cost FERENRE 120,861 - 120,861 120,861
Accrued expenses and other payables  IREESERURHEME BT R
measured at amortised cost HthEFE 23,620 — 23,620 23,620
227,178 15,569 242,747 237,569
(c) Interest rate risk (c) F=EER
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from REBWFERRFEREFTEMEE
interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at BETIIRFEFIEREENEER - <
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group FEEHFFERXBEEREFNERBREA
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest AEREEE

rate risk respectively.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 BIEEKREEREBMIAEQNAEBEGE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) F=EREB(E)
The following table details the interest rate profile TRINEAEBRREARNOBEER)
of the Group’s total borrowings at the end of the KIAAFE -

reporting period:

2018 2017
Effective Effective
interest rate Amounts interest rate Amounts
ERTI= 2 iR Fixc
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
% ARETT % AREFT
Fixed rate borrowings BEHEEE
— Bank loans — RITEN 4.35%8.1% 29573 5.66%-10.69% 44,000
— Other loans —HMER 6.1%7.6% 23,235 6.78% 49,088
Total borrowings EERE 52,808 93,088
Fixed rate borrowings as a BEMEEES
percentage of total borrowings ~ BEERE DL 100% 100%
(d) Currency risk (d) E¥ER
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily REBAEY v BB RREZERF AN
through receivables and cash balances that are B (BNERZFEB2EBE 2 EE L
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency N2 BB BSRKFIBERR S
other than the functional currency of the operations HEek e SIBULIERRBCEBETZAAR
to which the transactions relate. The currency giving B o NIREEIR - AR ER BRI
rise to this risk is primarily RMB. At the end of the TERX -
reporting period, the related risk of the Group is not
material.
(e) Fair value measurement (e) AREFE
Fair values of financial instruments carried at other TRAANEIRNERIAARE
than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial RE BRI B KA RN S m T
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are ARERMELRER2018F K2017412
not materially different from their fair values at 31 ABTEMARBETEERESR -

December 2018 and 2017.
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25 COMMITMENTS 25 EiE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018412 531 HIE# S BI R 7 (5 K 1B 1
2018 not provided for in the consolidated financial HIRENEXEIELT

statements were as follows:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Commitments in respect of purchase of FHABEME  WEL
property, plant and equipment AR SR
— Contracted for — BEI4 33,950 22,869
26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 EXBBAIRS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these BRARGAEMBHREEMITDMBEERNEH
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into G REBRFERNRI LA TEH RS °

below related party transactions during the year.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) EEEBEAEHH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEFZEBABTMEERNAR
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s BIEEMFIE (A8 ) R E
directors as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the & T &= ¥ BiE 8 538 (k9
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 9, is Fr#tfe) anT
as follows:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTTT

Short-term employee benefits S =S=EER 1,026 880
Post-employment benefits RIRIE AR 172 57

1,198 937
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see FEaREN B TAA 15 ABR (K
Note 6(b)). 6(b)) °

156  CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD = Bl 58 At AR A



26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 75 ¥R 2 Pl 53

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & E2018F 128318 It F[E

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)

26 EXBEHLEIRS®)

(Continued)
(b) Transactions with equity shareholders of the (b) EEXARERBRRREKMEBARNRIS
Company and their affiliates
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREF T
Reduction of capital in a subsidiary HUR— R B A TREZR
(Note 23(d)(ii)) (P sE23(d)(ii)) — 50,000
Loans received from a related party MBS 5 WER E X — 10,000
Loans repaid to a related party ) B R E R 10,000 10,000
Interest expenses FERAZ 407 1,084
Dividends paid (Note 23(c)) BEAIIRE (KEE23(c))) 12,180 —
Net increase in amounts due to the JRE U7 A AR BR R TR A
controlling shareholders HER 31,080 137,048
Payments for the acquisition of EFENERNE Tt oSl
Xian Tianrui pursuant to the 5%
Reorganisation 61,239 —
Guarantees and/or pledge of assets RS EAREHAOER
provided at the end of the reporting N,/ 8 & R
period (Note 18(e)) (Mi5E18(e)) 36,285 35,470
(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (c) EEBREXRSGzLMRAIZERME

connected transactions

None of the above related party transactions falls
under the definition of connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

b3t BB 52 5 ME B A\ T 45
1A B RERIER BRI EMER S
BE R -
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27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

Notes to the Financial Statements

27 RRAEMEZBHBRRE

POSITION
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi5E AR¥ET T AREFIT
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment in a subsidiary ] RiEARzEE 18 67,45 1
Current assets REEE
Dividend receivable from a JEW—FEMB AR ZIE
subsidiary 1,624 —
Prepayments and other TR IR R H fth FEUGRIE
receivables 876 —
Cash at bank and on hand SRITRFERE 8 —
e 2508 T
Current liabilities RBAE
Dividend payable JERTAZ B 1,624 -
Amount due to the controlling FETPRAZ AR SR SR IE
shareholders 876 —
Amount due to a subsidiary JEH I B A =) F0E = 1
e 250 1.
Net current assets/(iabilites) ~ n®&E (BE)¥® 8 | O
NET ASSETS BEEFH 67,464 —
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXRHE 23
Share capital N 13,216 —
Reserves & 54,248 —
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 67,464 —

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 26 March 2019.

Hou Jianli
BRER
Chairman

TR

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

EEEN2019F3 726 A #E A FHETEE o

Zhao Shijie
i
Executive Director

HITEF
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NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END OF

THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a) Initial listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange
On 15 January 2019, the shares of the Company
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, where 500,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each were issued and subscribed at a price of
HK$0.25 each. The proceeds, net of share issuance
expenses, will be credited to the Company’s share
capital and share premium account accordingly.

(b) Proposed final dividend
On 26 March 2019, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK$0.006 per ordinary
share. Further details are disclosed in Note 23(c)(i).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 at 1 January
2018. Under the transition method chosen, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the changes
in accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2(c).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
holding company of the Company at 31 December 2018 to
be H&C Group Holding Limited, which is incorporated in
the BVI, and the ultimate controlling party of the Company
at 31 December 2018 to be Mr Hou Jianli and Ms Chen
Bierui. H&C Group Holding Limited does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

28

29

30

Expressed in RMB (XA REZR)
WEHMERIEFAEEER

(@) FRARAROREIFERLT

R2019F1 A158 « AR ARG R
FrEMR £+ 500,000,0000% &5 I& &
0.01 8 TR (D LAEAR0. 25 LAY B 1%
1T MREE o FTSFE (B (D 31T
B ) BAEEET AR R B8R A R AR D
HIERR ©

(b) EBRAKE
MR201943H26H * "R AlEEEHR
RS B AT mAR0.6581(L - E—2
SIS EE23(c) (i) IR EE o

LEREF
REBER20184E1 A1 8 &K JE BB %R
SEBIEIN - MIBFTEERNBES L It

FEBIH2(C) B -
BERRRERA

NATEERE  P20185FE12831BARF]
WEEZG AR REE X RS EMA IR
H&C Group Holding Limited * 72018412
A31B AR RIE R HI 77 R ER) 5 4 R BR
RI$# 2+ - H&C Group Holding Limited i
MRS RREARER -
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31

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD B X/ S8E A AR A A

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FORTHE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

IFRS 16, Leases

B RS ERE 165 - HE

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments
BRI E MR NS E235 - ATE W B TTHEE M
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

B B 15 S 5 AR RN 2015 5F =201 7SR A B SR E U

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group has initially assessed
that the adoption of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
The assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before these amendments, new
standards and interpretations are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ending
30 June 2019. The Group , where applicable, may change
its accounting policy elections, including any transition
options, until these amendments, new standards and
interpretations are initially applied in that financial report.

31

BZE2018F12HA31 B L FEC EME N
REMBERTA » FER KRBT

E/
gE

HEAPKRETEAE  BRe: &=
ESCBMLEBEA - el ERBRE
(B E2018F12A31HIFFEHALN - B
M ARTEZI TS RETTIRM) o HBIETHIEE
BREEEEE -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RT5I B8 2 ZBRE
EERIDES

1 January 2019
201951 A1H
1 January 2019
201951 A1H
1 January 2019
201951 A1H

AEE L SR FERIA - #a] £/ ke
BREXERMEERzZE - AEELZS
RIEB T ERRZFETA - #a] £/
LRBEEMT2HAREGAMBHRRES
BAFE - 25 RILTR 2 ETIRIBARE
BIRE RIS ERHEL - MR AEHBE2019
F6A30A AN ANT R BRERERX
ERZEERIA - A BRI kB A ae
HRE—TTE - ER - AEBET AR
FHEHRRER(BRERER)  BEER
ZMERE B RERZFERTAN - T ER
e
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